
CITY OF ATWATER 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

 

Council Chambers 
750 Bellevue Road 
Atwater, California 

 
 

September 12, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 5:00 PM 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: 
 
ROLL CALL:  
  
Bergman____, Raymond ____, Rivero____, Vineyard ____, Price____ 
 
CLOSED SESSION:   
  
Adjourn to Conference Room A 
 
a. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with Real 

Property Negotiator regarding Property Disposition. Agency Negotiator: 
Community Development Director McBride 

 
Property Location:  APN 156-020-002 

 
b. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Government 

Code Section 54956.9(b): Number of cases: (3)  
 
c. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957, Public Employee 

Appointment:  City Manager 
 
d. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957, Public Employee 

Appointment:  City Attorney 
 

REGULAR SESSION:  (Council Chambers) 6:00 PM            6:00 PM 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: 
 
INVOCATION:   
 
Invocation by Police Chaplain McClellan 



City Council Agenda for Meeting of September 12, 2016            Page 2 
 

 
 

ROLL CALL:  
 
Bergman____, Raymond ____, Rivero____, Vineyard ____, Price____ 
 
MAYOR OR CITY ATTORNEY REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
SUBSEQUENT NEED ITEMS:  (The City Clerk shall announce any requests for items requiring 

immediate action subsequent to the posting of the agenda.  Subsequent need items require a two-thirds 
vote of the members of the City Council present at the meeting.)   

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AS AMENDED:  (This is the time for the City 

Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.) 

 
 Staff’s Recommendation:  Motion to approve agenda as posted or as amended. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 

 Monthly verbal report by Merced County District 3 Supervisor McDaniel 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WARRANTS:  
 
1. September 12, 2016 
 

Staff’s Recommendation:  Approval of warrants as listed. 
 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Background information has been provided on all matters listed under the Consent Calendar, 
and these items are considered to be routine.  All items under the Consent Calendar are 
normally approved by one motion.  If discussion is requested on any item, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action. 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

At this time any person may comment on any item which is not on the agenda.  Please state your 
name and address for the record.  Action will not be taken on an item that is not on the agenda.  If it 
requires action, it will be referred to staff and/or placed on a future agenda.   
 

To comment on an item that is on the agenda, please wait until the item is read for consideration; 
please limit comments to a maximum of five (5) minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Civility is expected from members of the public during the meeting.  For more efficient use of 
time, disruptive behavior will not be tolerated.  While you may not agree with what an individual 
is saying, please treat everyone with courtesy and respect. 



City Council Agenda for Meeting of September 12, 2016            Page 3 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES:  (City Council)  
 
2. Regular meeting, August 22, 2016 
 

Staff’s Recommendation:  Approval of minutes as listed. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 
3. Accepting the 2016 Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) 2016 Byrne 

Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Award (Interim Police Chief 
Joseph) 

 
Staff's Recommendation:  Acceptance of the 2016 Bureau of Justice 
Assistance (BJA) 2016 Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
award and authorizes and directs the City Manager or his designee to sign 
any grant related documents on behalf of the City. 

 
4. Re-adopting Conflict of Interest Code (City Clerk Del Real) 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: Adoption of Resolution No. 2919-16 
re-adopting the City of Atwater’s Conflict of Interest Code. 

 
5. Authorizes execution of all documents related to Congestion Management 

and Air Quality (CMAQ) Projects: CML-5254(023) Wheel Loader 
Replacement Project, CML-254(024) Tractor Loader Replacement Project, 
and Cml-5254(025) Replacement of Two (2) Dump Trucks Project 
(Community Development Director McBride) 
 

Staff's Recommendation:  Adoption of Resolution No. 2921-16 
authorizing and directing the City Manager or his designee to execute any 
agreements or documents, in a form approved by the City Attorney, on 
behalf of the City, relating to CMAQ Project CML-5254(023) Wheel Loader 
Replacement Project; adoption of Resolution No. 2922-16 authorizing and 
directing the City Manager or his designee to execute any agreements or 
documents, in a form approved by the City Attorney, on behalf of the City, 
relating to CMAQ Project CML-5254(024) Tractor Loader Replacement 
Project; and adoption of Resolution No. 2923-16 authorizing and directing 
the City Manager or his designee to execute any agreements or 
documents, in a form approved by the City Attorney, on behalf of the City, 
relating to CMAQ Project CML-5254(025) Dump Truck Replacement 
Project (Two). 

 
AGREEMENTS: 
 
6. Approves Professional Services Agreement for Highway Safety 

Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 7 (Community Development Director 
McBride) 

 



City Council Agenda for Meeting of September 12, 2016            Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Staff's Recommendation:  Approval of Professional Services Agreement, 
in a form approved by the City Attorney, for Preliminary Engineering (PE) 
of the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 7 for Signal 
Modification at Shaffer Road and Juniper Avenue, to Mott MacDonald of 
Gilroy, California in an amount not to exceed $46,610; and authorizes and 
directs the City Manager to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
REPORTS: 
 
7. Monthly review of local drought emergency (City Attorney Terpstra) 

 
Staff’s Recommendation:  Reaffirms the facts and findings in Resolution 
No. 2823-15 declaring the existence of a local drought emergency. 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION REQUIRED): 

 
8. Police Department activities and projects for the month of August, 2016 

(Interim Police Chief Joseph) 
 

9. Police Volunteer activities for the month of August, 2016 (Police Volunteer 
Vineyard) 

  
10. Fire Department activities and projects for the month of August, 2016 (CAL 

FIRE Battalion Chief Pimentel) 
 

11. Public Works Department activities and projects for the month of August, 
2016 (Interim Public Works Director Faretta) 
 

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
12. Request from New Life Community Church for use of Ralston Park on 

October 9, 2016 
 

Staff’s Recommendation:  Approval of request from New Life 
Community Church to change the date of event previously approved for 
Sunday, October 2, 2016 to Sunday, October 9, 2016 for use of Ralston 
Park from 7:00 AM to 1:00 PM to hold a worship service to celebrate their 
16th birthday.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
13. Amending Miscellaneous Fee Schedule (Finance Director Deol) 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: Open the public hearing and take any 
testimony given; and  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2918-16 amending the Miscellaneous Fee 
Schedule; or  



City Council Agenda for Meeting of September 12, 2016            Page 5 
 

Motion to approve staff’s recommendation as presented. 
 
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS FROM STAFF: 
 
14. Verbal update regarding Community Development Department activities 

and projects (Community Development Director McBride) 
   
15. Verbal discussion and possible action regarding General Plan update 

(Community Development Director McBride) 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: That the City Council, by motion, provide staff 
with direction regarding the General Plan update. 
 

16. Verbal report regarding solar savings at designated locations (Water 
Systems Shift Operator Vinson) 
 

CITY COUNCIL MATTERS: 
 
17. Verbal discussion and possible action regarding dissolving the Audit and 

Finance Committee (City Council Member Vineyard) 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: That the City Council, by motion, provide staff 
with direction regarding dissolving the Audit and Finance Committee. 

 
18. Verbal discussion and possible action regarding establishing a policy 

prohibiting cell phones and other texting devices during City Council 
meetings (City Council Member Vineyard) 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: That the City Council, by motion, provide staff 
with direction regarding establishing a policy prohibiting cell phones and 
other texting devices during City Council meetings. 

 
19. Verbal discussion and possible action regarding submitting By-District 

Election method to the Voters at an election prior to the November 2018 
elections (City Council Member Vineyard) 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: That the City Council, by motion, provide staff 
with direction regarding submitting By-District Election method to the 
Voters at an election prior to the November 2018 elections.  
 

20. Verbal discussion and possible action regarding City of Atwater Development 
Fee Reduction Program (City Council Member Raymond) 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: That the City Council, by motion, provide staff 
with direction regarding the City of Atwater Development Fee Reduction 
Program. 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda for Meeting of September 12, 2016            Page 6 
 

 
21. City Council comments 
 
CLOSED SESSION:   
 
Continuation of Closed Session if necessary 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 

 
I, Jeanna Del Real, City Clerk of the City of Atwater, do hereby certify that a copy of the 
foregoing agenda was posted at City Hall a minimum of 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 

_______________________________        
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
SB 343 NOTICE 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing or document that is a public 
record, relates to an open session agenda item and is distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular 
meeting will be made available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk at City Hall during 
normal business hours at 750 Bellevue Road. 

  
If, however, the document or writing is not distributed until the regular meeting to which it relates, then the 
document or writing will be made available to the public at the location of the meeting, as listed on this 
agenda at 750 Bellevue Road. 

 
 

In compliance with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, upon request, the 
agenda can be provided in an alternative format to accommodate special needs.  If you 
require special accommodations to participate in a City Council, Commission, or Committee 
meeting due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s Office a minimum of three (3) 

business days in advance of the meeting at 357-6205.  You may also send the request by email to 
jdelreal@atwater.org. 

 
 

mailto:jdelreal@atwater.org


1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30

~ September 2016 ~

 6:00 PM

9:00 AM - 3:00 PM 3:30 PM

 City Council Meeting -  

Fall Festival Committee Meeting -

    

City Hall closed

 

 Audit & Finance

Notes:

  1:30 - 3:30 PM   

 ARA Meeting - 1:30 PM

City Hall closed Fall Festival

 Oversight Board of Community Development Merced County District 3  

Meeting - 6:00 PM "Mobile" Office Hours -  

 

 Successor Agency to & Resources Commission Supervisor McDaniel

9:00 AM - 5:00 PM

    

6:00 PM @ City Hall

  

Patriot Day and 6:00 PM City Hall closed

   

 
National Day of Service

 

 City Council Meeting -   

 1 day

 

   

  

 

 Trash pick up delayed  

 

 Labor Day  City Hall closed  

 City Holiday 

 

  

 

 

    

 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

City Hall closed

Saturday

 



1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 Audit & Finance 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

     

   1:30 - 3:30 PM  

  "Mobile" Office Hours -  

 City Council Mtg - 6:00 PM Supervisor McDaniel City Hall closed

 

 Committee Mtg - 3:30 PM Merced County District 3

     

 

    

 ARA Meeting - 1:30 PM

City Hall closed 7:00 AM - 2:00 PM

 Oversight Board of Community Development  

 Meeting - 6:00 PM  

Fall Clean Up Day

 Successor Agency to & Resources Commission

 

     

 

 

6:00 PM City Hall closed

   

 City Council Meeting -  

 

 

  

    

    

 

 City Hall closed

 

  

    

    

 

   

   

  

Saturday

   

~ October 2016 ~

  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday



WARRANTS SUMMARY FOR SEPTEMBER 12,20L6 COUNCIL MEETING

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION

TOTAL OF WARRANTS (FROM WARRANT REPORT)

ADDTTTONAL WARRANTS (THESE AMOUNTS ARE NOT TNCLUDED rN TOTAL WARRANTS)

DATE

8/22/2aß Prewrittens íncluded in this current warrant run (s206,978.33)

543,473.9o

s789.30

S1o5,9oo.L7

5 L5,576.2L

s33,770.96
46604.L6

539,136.37
GRAND TOTAL OF WARRANTS PAID =======================================================================

TNFORMATTONAL ONLY ( TNCLUDED rN THE TOTAL WARRANTS TOTAL)

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONDATE

8/23/201.6 PERS Retirement EFT 7 /27 /1,6 - 8/tO/L6
8 / 23 | 2OL6 AFLAC-AUG UST 2016

9/6/2OL6 PERS Health - SEPTEMBER 2016

8/ t/2OL6 Dental Claims/Admin.-AUG UST 201-6

8 / 30 / 2OL6 Retiree Med ica I Reimbursement-SE PTE M BER 2016

9/L/20t6 PERS Retirement EFT 8/LU76-8/24/2016
TOTAL ADDITIONAL WARRANTS

8/1812oL6 Net Payroll

8/ 78/2016 Federal Taxes

8/L8/2016 State Taxes

8 / L8/ 2OL6 Payroll Ded uctions

9/U20L6 Net Payroll

9/I/20t6 Federal Taxes

9/L/2Ot6 State Taxes

9/U201.6 Payroll Deductions

TOTAL I NFORMATIONAL WARRANTS

S146,638.32 S205,063.96 Totalpayroll

Sst,o¿s.zo
56,779.94

5t,977.93

SLs6,2B4.4s 5220,046.67 Total payroll

S55,868.98

57,893.24

5L,944.87

s2O7,O4L.89

5 781,698.80

s820,835.17

ER





Accounts Payable

Checks forApproval Affiater
ruñl^r t\tnsUser:

P¡inted:

Check Number Check Date Fund Name

jdaniel

91712016 - 2:01 PM

0812212016

08/22/2016

08/22120t6

0812212016

08/22120r6

08/22120t6

08122/2016

08122/2016

08/22/20t6

0812212016

08122/20r6

0812212016

0812212016

08122/20t6

08122/2016

08122/2016

08t22/2016

08122/2016

08/2212016

0812212016 General Fund

08/2212016 General Fund

08122/20t6 General Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fuird

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

Siena Parks LD
Intemal Service Fund

Wildwood Estates LD
Shaffer Lakes West LD

Account Name

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Summer Co-Ed Softball League

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Special Departmental Expense

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintena¡ce

Operations & Maintenance

Special Departmental Expense

Utilities
Utililies
Utilities

utilities

Vendor Name

COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C
COLEMAN HEATING & A/C

TODDA. DAVIS

STEVE FLORIANO

THOMAS E. GOFF

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

LATTA'S AUTO SUPPLY

Check Total:

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

C." cptttttttttri I.¡. Pri ilc (' i I.t tl'i cl¡-

ïñO BdÞTrrÆ Rfiäd. Åtåffif çAgF301

Void

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

Amount

68527

68527

68527

68527

6852'.7

68527

6852',7

6852'.7

68527

182.07

784.29

75.00

165.00

1 15.00

I 88.50

218.50

176.00

767.04

2,6't1.40

s0.0068528

68s29

68530

50.00

175.00

6853 I

6853 I

6853 I

6853 I

6853 I
6853 1

68532

68532

68532

68532

175.00

150.00

150.00

69.01

61.30

14.'79

14;19

72.45

23.07

255.41

9'7.79

4,272.86

225;78

150.73

AP-Checks forApproval (91712016 - 2:01 PM) Page I



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

68532

08/22/201,6

08/22120r6

08/22/2016

08/22/2016

08/22/2016

08/22/2016

08/22/2016

08/22t2016

08/22/2016

08/22/2016

08/22120t6

08/22t2016

08122/2016

08/22/2016

08/22/20r6

08/2212016

08/22/2016

08122/20r6

08t22/20r6

08/22/2016

08/22/20r6

08122/2016

08/22/20t6
08/22120r6

08/2212016

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities
urilities
Utilities

Utilities

utiliries
Utilities

Utilities

Utililies
Utilities
utilities
Utilities

Utilities
Utilities

uriliries
Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities
urilities
Utilities

urilities
utiliries

44.05

514.98

530.75

2,190.91

1,712.48

t26.55

44.05

13,7 59.35

t,714.91

27.48

164.69

286.37

79.28

3s7.95

2,536.03

384.96

74.56

3 1.60

313.86

69.83

32,936.82

1,590.40

68.14

86,847.73

25,006.08

225.00

275.00

50.00

Amount

325.00

50.00

50.00

732.48

732.48

50.00

222.06

08/22/2016 General Fund

Woodview Garland LA
Shaffer Lakes East LD
Airport Business Park LD
General Fund

Price Annexalion LD
Gas Tax/Street Improvemsnt
Woodhaven LD
Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

General Fund

Cottage Gardens LD
General Fund

General Fund

Sandlewood Square LD
General Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Northwood Village LD
Pajaro Dunes LD
Atwater South LD
Orchard Park Estates LD
General Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Gas TaxlStreet Improvement

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Adult Slo-Pirch softball

Summer Co-Ed Softball League

Adulr Slo-Pitch Softball

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Miscellaneous Union Dues

Gamishments

Garnishments

Vendor Name

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

Check Total:

FERNANDO PERALES

Check Total:

CLINTONWILLIAMS
CLINTONWILLIAMS

Check Total:

RICHARDA. ZAMARRIPA

Check Total:

AFSCME DISTRICT COIJNCIL 57

Check Total:

FRANCHISETAX BOARD
FRANCHISETAX BOARD

Account Name Void

176,160.97

225.0068533

68534

68534

6853 5

68536

68537

68537

08/22t2016

08122/2016

08/2312016

08/23/20r6

08/2212016 General Fund

08123/2016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/7/2016 - 2:01 PM) Page2



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

68538 08123/20r6 General Fund

Account Name

Pre-Paid Legal

Miscellaneous Union Dues

Miscellaneous Union Dues

Gamishments

Deferred Compensation

Rents & Leases

Professional Services

Training

Professional Services

Health Insurance, Retirees

Health lnsurance, Retirees

Health Insurance, Retirees

He¿lth Insurance, Retirees

Vendor Name

Check Total:

PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES

Check Total:

RMHC OF THE CENTRALVALLEY, INC.
RMHC OF THE CENTRAL VALLEY, INC.

Check Total:

STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT

Check Total:

VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGT-457

Check Total:

MAILFINANCE

Check Total:

MERCED COUNTYCLERK

Check Total:

PI]BLIC SAFETY TRAINING INSTITUTE

Check Total:

VALLEY UTILITIE CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Check Total:

RAMONABLAKE

Check Total:

DAVID CHURCH

Check Total:

GARYFRAGO

Check Total:

BOBBYGREGORY

Void Amount

272.06

28.91

28.91

20.78

20.78

4t.56

852.92

8s2.92

50.00

50.00

1,605.84

1,605.84

2,260.25

2,260.2s

198.00

198.00

4,801.50

4,801.50

242.24

242.24

630. I 9

630.1 9

334.76

334;16

1,838.49

1,83 8.49

630.19

68539

68539

08/2312016

08123/2016

General Fund

General Fund

68540 08/23/2016 General Fund

68541 08/2312016 General Fund

68542 08/25/2016 General Fund

68543 0812s12016 General Fund

68544 08125/2016 Gene¡al Fund

68545 08/2512016 Sewer Enterprise Fund

68546 08/3112016 Employee Benefrts Fund

68547 08131/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

68s48 08/31/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

68s49 08/31/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

68550 08/3t/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/7/2016 - 2:01 PM)

Health Insu¡ance, Retirees DARRELLHAMMI'T

Check Total:

Page 3



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

6855 r 08/31/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

68552 08/3112016 Employee Benefits Fund

68553 09/0t/20t6 Internal Service Fund

09106/20r6 General Fund

General Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Account Name

Health Insurance, Retirees

Health Insurance, Retirees

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Training
Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Summer Recreation Program

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Training

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departrnental Expense

Professional Services

Professional Services

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Training

Miscellaneous Union Dues

Gamishments

Gamishments

Pre-Paid Legal

Vendor Name

Check Total:

RENE MENDOZA

Check Total:

BILL SWALLEY

Check Total:

BOB'S REFRIGERATION

Check Total:

WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK
WESTAMERICABANK

Check Total:

AFSCME DISTRICT COUNCIL 57

Check Total:

FRANCHISETAX BOARD
FRANCHISETAX BOARD

Check Total:

PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES

Check Total:

STATE DISBURSEMENT IJNIT

Void Amount

630. r9

870.77

870.77

66.88

66.88

211,00

21 1 .00

4.31

155.00

33.00

3.96

23.93

1,236.33

54.68

322.49

200.00

39.3t

20'1.r0

2,004.66

2r5.99

4,499.77

2.12

299.99

9,302.64

763.66

763.66

199.38

50.00

249.38

28.91

28.91

852.92

68554

68554

68554

68s54

68554

68554

68554

68554

68554

68554

68554

68554

685s4

68554

685s4

685s4

09101/2016

09/0t/2016
09/ol/2016

09/0U2016

09/0t/20r6
09/01/2016

0910r/2016

09/01/2016

09/01/2016

09/0U20r6
09/0t/2016

09101/2016

09/01/20r6

09/0t/20r6
09/0U2016

09/0U20r6

68555

68556

68ss6

09106/2016

09/06/20r6

68557 09/06/20t6 General Fund

68558 09t06/2016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/712016 - 2:01 PM)

Gamishments

Page 4



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

685s9 09/06/2016 General Fund

Account Name

Deferred Compensation

Vendor Name

Check Total:

VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGT-457

Check Total:

Report Total:

Void Amount

852.92

50.00

50.00

206,978.J3

AP-Checks forApproval (9i7/2016 - 2:01 PM) Page 5





Accounts Payable

Checks forApproval

User: jdaniel

Printed: 9/712016 - 2:04 PM

Check Number Check Date Fund Name

.A'tr{äter

Account Name Vendor Name

Connwtir.v Pr¡dc t¡t.v $'¡úc
ïõo BdÞvl^E EnÐI, Êt¡¡#'c.ÂsFaal

Void Amount

68560

68560

6856

6856'.7

68567

09/12/20t6

09112/2016

09n2/20r6
09/12/2016

0911212016

urrur/

urrut/

urruol

**/

ur*/

urru/

urrur/

urru/

09/12/2016 Sanitation Enterprise

09/12/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

09112120t6 General Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

09112/2016 GasTax/Sheetlmprovement

0911212016 Sewer Enterprise Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

General Fund

Professional Services

Offtce Supplies

Solid Waste Collectn/Disposal

Health Insurance, Retirees

Community Center

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Communications

Special Departmental Expense

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

ABS PRESORT, INC.
ABS PRESORT, INC.

Check Total:

ALLIED WASTE SERVICES #917

Check Total:

AMERICAN REPI.IBLIC

Check Tot¿l:

ROBERTANDERSON

Check Total:

ASAP TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS

Check Total:

ASSOCIATES LOCK

Check Total:

AT andT

Check Total:

ATWATER CHIROPRACTIC, INC.
ATWATER CHIROPRACTIC, INC.
ATWATER CHIROPRACTIC, INC.

Check Total:

ATWATER IRRIGATION INC.

Check Total:

ATWATER MEDICAL GROUP

1,9'19.80

2,700.00

4,679.80

204,684.94

204,684.94

424.89

424.89

300.00

300.00

125.00

r 25.00

3.24

47'7.89

477.89

440.00

60.00

60.00

560.00

37.81

37.8r

254.00

3.24

09/12/2016 Water Enterprise Fund

09/12t2016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/712016 - 2:04 PM)

Special Departmental Expense

Page 1



Check Number Cheek Date Fund Name Account Name

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Building Permits

sB 1473

Special Departmental Expense

Castle Park

Operations & Maintenance

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Vendor Name

Check Total:

AUTO HOUSE OF CLOVIS INC
AUTO HOUSE OF CLOVIS INC
AUTO HOUSE OF CLOVIS INC
AUTO HOUSE OF CLOVIS INC
AIJ-TO HOUSE OF CLOVIS INC

Check Total:

B & B PLUMBING
B & B PLUMBING

Check Total:

BC LABORATORIES INC.

Check Total:

LETICIABEDOLLA

Check Total

BELCORPAG

Check Total:

BEST IMPRESSION PRINTING

Check Total:

BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LIIMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY
BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY

Check Total:

BLUELINE RENTAL

BLUELINE RENTAL

Check Total:

JESUS & ROSACISNEROS

Void Amount

254-00

95.00

95.00

95.34

52.00

43.34

380.68

77.00

1.00

78.00

75.00

75.00

170.00

170.00

87.63

87.63

165.6'1

165.67

39.09

16.50

8.58

5.78

37.35

20.40

28.82

11.27

t67.79

196.01

289.16

485.t7

t 70.00

68570

68570

68570

68570

68570

68571

68571

09/12/2016

091t2/2016

09/12t2016

09/t212016

09/12/2016

09112/20t6

09/t2/20t6

091t2/2016

09/12/20t6

09/12/20r6

09/12/2016

09/t2/2016

09/12/2016

091r2/20t6

09/1212016

09/12/2016

091t2/20r6

6557r/

68s73/

68s74/

68s7s/

68s76/

68577'f

09112/2016 Sanitation Enterprise

09/12/2016 General Fund

091t2/2016 Intemal Service Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

Police Grants Fund

Police Grants Fund

General Fund

Police Grants Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Gas Tax/Street Improvement

Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

68576

68576

68576

68576

68576

68576

68576

68577

68578 09/1212016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/7/2016 - 2:04 PM)

Castle Park

Page2



(68579

Check Number Check Date Fund Name

09112/2016 Intemal Service Fund

68580 09/12/2016 Gas TaxlStreet Improvement

6858 1 09/12/2016 General Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

09112/2016 Water Enterprise Fund

09/1212016 Intemal Service Fund

09/t2120r6 Gene¡al Fund

Price Annexation LMA
PriceAnnexation LMA

Ferrari Ranch Project Fund

Reimbursement Agreements Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Gas Tax/Street Improvement

Gas Ta¡:/Street Improvement

Gas TalStreet Improvement

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Gas Tax/Street Improvement

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Account Name

Communications

Special Departrnental Expense

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Communications

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Professional Services

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Small Tools

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Professional Services

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Small Tools

Special Departmental Expense

Vendor Name

Check Total:

COMCAST CABLE

Check Total:

CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTORÍ

Check Total:

TODDA. DAVIS

Check Total:

DELTAWIRELESS & NETWORK SOLUTIONS

Check Total:

DOM'S ELECTRIC MOTOR SHOP

DOM'S ELECTRIC MOTOR SHOP

Check Total:

EMC PLANNING GROUP INC
EMC PLANNING GROUP INC

Check Total:

FASTENALCOMPANY

FASTENALCOMPANY

FASTENALCOMPANY

FASTENALCOMPANY

FASTENALCOMPANY

FASTENALCOMPANY

Check Total:

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC. #690

Check Total:

GARTON TRACTOR INC

Check Total:

THOMAS E. GOFF

GRAINGER, INC.

GRAINGER, INC,

Void Amount

170.00

13.20

13.20

538.40

538.40

130.00

130.00

293.16

293.16

1,241.63

281.94

1,523.57

8,400.28

3,769.25

t2,169.53

121.59

24.28

33.07
1î aa

2.16

55.30

2s8.68

654.66

654.66

827.93

82'1.93

40.00

40.00

44.85

r09.24

68585

68585

68585

68585

68585

68s83

68s83

68584

68s84

09/12/20r6

09/12/2016

09/1212016

09/1212016

091t2/2016

0911212016

09112/2016

09112/2016

09/t2/2016

09112/2016

09/12t2016

09/t2120r6

685 ,/

6858

I68588

685

68589

AP-Checks forApproval (91712016 - 2:04 PM)

Check Total:

Page 3



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

685901 09/12/2016 SanirationEnterprise

6859

Account Name

Professional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmontal Expense

Memberships & Subscriptions

P¡ofessional Services

Communications

Traffrc Signal Synchronization

Special Departmental Expense

Uniform & Clothing Expense

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Building Permits

sB 1473

Professional Services

Printing & Advertising

Printing & Advertising

Vendor Name

Check Total:

GREGG DRILLING & TESTING

Check Total:

HORIZON

HORIZON

Check Total:

IIMC

Check Total:

JACKS R BETTER INC.

Check Total:

JD SANDERS COMPANYLLC

Check Total:

JLB TRAFFIC ENGINEERNG, INC

Check Total:

KELLOGG'S SUPPLY

KELLOGG'S SUPPLY

Check Total:

MCAULEYMOTORS
MCAULEYMOTORS
MCAULEYMOTORS
MCAULEYMOTORS

Check Total:

MERCED COLNTY COMMUNITY ACTION AGF

MERCED COUNTY COMMIINITYACTION AGT

Check Total:

MERCED IRRIGATION DISTRICT

MERCED SUN STAR

MERCED SUN STAR

Void Amount

154.09

28,203.25

28,203.25

105.25

155.87

26t.r2

95.00

95.00

88.00

88.00

650.00

650.00

312.14

312.14

14.53

13r.12

l4s.6s

61.76

30.46

30.85

40r.28

524.35

22.00

1.00

23.00

475.87

475.87

r 53.60

378.40

68ss3/

68ss/

68ss/

68ss|/

68se/

68591

68594

68595

68596

68597

68597

68597

68598

68600

68600

6ssss/

09/t212016

09112/2016

09/12/20r6

09/12/20t6

09/12/20r6

09/12/2016

09/12t2016

091r2/20t6

09/1212016

09/12/20r6

091t212016

09112/2016

091r212016 General Fund

09/12/20t6 Intemal Service Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

09/1212016 General FundCapital

09/1212016 Sewer Enterprise Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Gas TaxlSheet Improvemeût

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

Gene¡al Fund

General Fund

General Fund

AP-Checks for Approval l9l712016 - 2:04 PM)

Check Total:

Page 4



Check Number Check D¡te Fund Name

6860r 09/12/2016 Intemal Service Fund

Account Name

Professional Services

Uniform & Clothing Expense

Uniform & Clothing Expense

Professional Services

Community Center Rental

Community Center

Community Center Rental

Offrce Supplies

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Training

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Ope-rations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Special Departmental Expense

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Small Tools

Small Tools

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Special Departmental Expense

Vendor Name

MERCED TINT

MERCED TINIFORM

MERCED TINIFORM

MTJNICODE

NRAFOUNDATION
NRAFOUNDATION
NRAFOUNDATION

THE OFFICE CIry

Void Amount

532.00

380.00

380.00

69.03

300.02

369.05

1,552.28

1,552.28

-88.00

200.00

72.00

184.00

177.61

177.61

20.50

3.24

94.95

86.47

5.25

79.77

r45.63

208.60

s6.69

7.54

3.84

5.25

121.63

-119.20

24.82

32.39

35.63

62.60

1l.86

74.64

59.98

68602/

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

Check Total:

68602

6

68604

68604

68605

09112/2016 General Fund

09/tzt2016

09112/2016

09/t212016

09/1212016

09/12t20r6

091t2/2016

09112/2016

091t2/2016

09/12/20r6

09112/20t6

09/12/2016

09/12/20r6

09/12/20r6

09112/20t6

09/t2/20r6
09/12/2016

09/12t2016

09/12/20t6

09/12t2016

09/1212016

09112120r6

09lry20r6
09/12t2016

09/ta20L6
09/1212016

09/12/2016

General Fund

General Fund

Gene¡al Fund

General Fund

General Fund

09/1212016 General Fund

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68ó06

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

68606

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

O'REILLYAUTO PARTS

AP-Checks forApproval (917/2016 - 2:04 PM) Page 5



Check Number Check Date Fund Name Account Name

Special Departmental Expense

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Vendor Name

Check Total:

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACTFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

PACIFTC GAS & ELECTRIC

Check Total:

ERIC PALMER

Check Total:

FERNANDO PERALES

Check Total:

PETERSEN DEAN ROOFING AND SOLAR

Void Amount

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

68607

09/12/2016

09/r2120t6

09/1212016

09il2/2016
09/t2/2016

09/12/20r6

09/12/20t6

09/t2/20r6
09n2/2016
09/t2/2016
09/t2/2016

09/1212016

09/12/2016

09/t2/2016

091t2t2016

09/12/2016

09112/20t6

09/12120t6

09/12120r6

09/12/2016

09112/2016

091t2/2016

09/12/20t6
09/1212016

09112/2016

091t2/2016

09^2/2016
09/12/20t6
09/r2120t6

09/12/2016

09112/2016

09lt2/2016

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

utilfies
Utililies
Utilities

Utilities
Utilities

Utilities
Utilities
utilities
Utilities

Utiliiies
Utilities

Utilities

utiliries
Utilities

Utilities

utilities
Utilities

Utilities

uriliries
uriliries
Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

Utilities

utiliries
uriliries
Utilities
utilities

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Gas TaxlStreet Improvement

Internal Service Fund

Aþort Business Park LD
Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

Atwater South LD
Price Annexation LD
Pajaro Dunes LD
Woodhaven LD
Gas TalStreet Improvement

General Fund

Cottage Gardens LD
General Fund

Northwood Village LD
Gas Tax/Street Improvement

General Fund

Wildwood Estates LD
Sewer Enterprise Fund

Orcha¡d Park Estates LD
Shaffer Lakes East LD
Sandlewood Square LD
General Fund

Sierra Parks LD
General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Shafler Lakes West LD
Woodview Garland LA

1,020.06

256.16

29,616.09

71.69

73.56

1,J75.67

74.50

4,196.t7

t46;79

32,282.32

172.03

33.04

1,674.64

74.56

44.05

13,734.48

323.63

28.t3

2,733.82

401. l8
155.36

2,042.60

1t7.91

2,489.14

316.24

514.94

79.28

388.33

108.44

379.85

I,689.36

150.71

44.05

68608 09/1212016 General Fund

9s,788.72

330;19

330.79

155.00

155.00

7'1.00

6860/

686r0/

09/12/2016 General Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

AP-Checks for Approval (917 /2016 - 2:04 PM)

Building Permits

Page 6



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

68610 09/12/2016 General Fund

686 1 09/12/2016 Gas Tax/Street Improvement

6861 3

t2/

09/1212016 Intemal Service Fund

686 09/12/20r6 General Fund

686t4/ 09112/2016 General Fund

09112/2016 Sewer Enterprise Fund

09t12/2016 General Fund

Information Technology Fund

Information Technology Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Gas TalSheet Improvement

Gas TaxlStreet Improvement

Gas TaxlStreet Improvement

Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

General Fund

General Fund

Gene¡al Fund

Account Name

sB 1473

Winton Way Road Improvements

Maint. Buildings & Grounds

Special Deparfnental Expense

P¡ofessional Services

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Professional Services

Professional Services

Uniform & Clothing Expense

Castle Park

Special Departrnental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

sB 1473

Building Permits

SMI Tax

Vendor Name

PETERSEN DEAN ROOFINGAND SOLAR

Check Total:

PHASE I CONSTRUCTION

Check Total:

DONNAPOWDEN

Check Total:

PRESTON'S LOCK & KEY

Check Total:

QUAD KNOPF

Check Total:

QUICKPCSUPPORT

QUTCKPCSUPPORT

Check Total:

RAFTELIS FINANCIAL
RAFTELIS FINANCIAL

Check Total:

RED WING SHOE STORES

Check Total:

MARCELINO ROMERO

Check Total:

SAFE-T-LITE
SAFE-T.LITE

SAFE-T-LITE
SAFE-T-LITE

Check Total:

HENRYSCHEIN, INC.

SOLAR CITY, CORP

SOLAR CITY, CORP

SOLARCITY, CORP

Void Amount

1.00

78.00

47,s47 .50

47,547 .50

366.7s

366.75

8.10

8.10

L2'7.00

127.00

1,052.04

26.99

1,079.03

1,480.00

68.75

1,548.75

59.63

59.63

170.00

170.00

449.77

352.88

-24.73

449.77

328.15

779,67

779.67

I 1.00

3,613.00

19.47

6s6t/
68615

686 IJ
68616

6861

686 I

6861/
68619

68619

68619

6862r/
68621

68621

09/12/2016

09/t2120r6

09n2/2016

09112/2016

09/t2/20r6
09/t2/2016

09112/20t6

09/t2/20t6

091t212016

09/12/20r6
09/12/20t6

6862/ 09/t2/2016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/7/2016 - 2:04 PM)

Check Total:

Page 7



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

6&622 09/1212016 Water Enterprise Fund

Account Name

Special Departmental Expense

Summer Recreation Program

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Capacity Fee

Castle Sewer Interceptor

Castle Sewe¡ Interceptor

Sw Quad Storm Drainage Fees

Bridge Widening

Water Service Charges

Youth Center Facility Tax

Traffic Signals & Opticons

Engineering Admin Fees

Rrif
Govt. Building Facility Tax

Building Permits

Traffrc Circulation Tax

Fire Facility Impact Fee

Sewer Connection Fees

Signal @ Bell Dr
Parks & Rec. Facility Tax

Police Facility Impact Fee

Capacity Fee

Parks Capital Improvemt Tax

Applegate Trafüc Signal

SMI Tax

Water Connection Fees

sB 1473

Vendor Name

Check Total:

SPARLING INSTRUMENTS LLC

Check Total:

STAPLES BUSINES S ADVANTAGE
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
STAPLES BUSINES S ADVANTAGE
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

Check Total:

STEVEN STONE, II

Check Total:

Void Amounf

3,643.47

1,538.94

t,538.94

4.96

94.11

106.44

21.79

67.68

294.98

40.00

60,933.38

750.00

68623

68623

68623

68623

09/12/20t6

09/1212016

09112/20t6

091t212016

091t2/2016

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

6862/ 09/12/20r6 General Fund

68625

68625

6862s

68625

68625

68625

68625

6862s

68625

68625

68625

68625

68625

6862s

68625

68625

6862s

68625

68625

68625

68625

68625

6862s

68625

09112120r6

09/1212016

09/12/2016

09/12/2016

091t212016

09112/2016

09/12/2016

09/12/2016

09/12/2016

09112120r6

09/t2/2016

09/12/20r6
09/12/20r6

09/1212016

09/12t2016

09/t2/2016

09n2/2016

0911212016

09112/2016

09/12/20t6

09/1212016

09112/20r6

09112/2016

09/t2/20t6

Water Capital Impact Fees

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Community RDVLPMNT Prop Trust

Local Transportation Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

Parks and Recreation Fund

TrafFrc Circulation Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Govemment Building Facility

General Fund

Traffrc Circulation Fund

Fire Facility Impact Fee

Sewer Fund Capital Replacement

Traffic Ci¡culation Fund

Parks and Recreation Fund

Police Facility Impact Fee

Sewer Fund Capital Replacement

Parks and Recreation Fund

Traffrc Circulation Fund

General Fund

Water Capital Impact Fees

General Fund

STONEFIELD HOMES
STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES
STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES
STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES
STONEFIELD HOMES

STONEFIELD HOMES

40.00

7,965.32

880.00

t,092.00

876.96

851.36

l 87.80

2,000,00

200.00

644.80

12,896.08

1,121.96

7,779.20

t,976.00

1,540.32

1,208.00

699.36

3,501.04

1,t87.84

r0,862.32

1,480.24

699.36

56.42

1,208.00

19.00

Check Total:

STINRTIN INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC68626 09/12/2016 General Fund

AP-Checks forApproval (9/712016 - 2:04 PM)

Building Permits

Page 8



Check

68626

68626

6862

68629

091t2/2016

09n2/2016

09t12/2016

09/t212016

09112/20t6

09/12/20r6

09/12/2016

09112/20t6

09/12/20t6
09/12/2016

09/1212016

09/1212016

09/1212016

09/1212016

09/r2120r6

09/12t2016

09/12t2016

Check Date Fund Name Account Name

sB 1473

SMI Tax

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Operations & Maintenance

Operations & Maintenance

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departrnental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Small Tools

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Life lnsurance Payable

Professional Services

Communications

Communications

Communications

Communications

Vendor Name

STINRUN INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC
SUNRI.IN INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC

Check Total:

SWRCB FEES

Check Total:

TELEPACIFIC COMMI]NICATIONS

Check Total:

TESEI PETROLEUM, INC.
TESEI PETROLEUM, INC.

Check Total:

TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CRSDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN

Check Total:

I-INIVERSITY PET RT,SORT

Check Total:

UNUM LIFE INSURANCE

Check Total:

VALLEYA-I ELECTRIC

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS
VERIZONWIRELESS
VERIZONWIRELESS

09/12/2016 Water Enterprise Fund

09/12/2016 Information Technology Fund

09/1212016 General Fund

091r2/20t6 General Fund

09/12/2016 General Fund

09/12/2016

09/12/2016

09/t212016

09/t212016

General Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Gas TalStreet Improvement

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Water Enterprise Fund

General Fund

Void Amount

2.00

s.98

757.98

640.40

640.40

5,277.87

5,27'7.87

2,2t9.05

7,678.63

9,897.68

6.45

56.13

46.43

77.24

32.39

19.43

59.r4

9.70

388.79

21.59

10.79

2l.58
75.49

825.1 5

70.50

70.s0

1,683.05

1,683.0s

400.00

400.00

85.31

79.18

79.t4
706.69

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68630

68631

6863/

6s63/

68634/
68634

68634

68634

AP-Checks forApproval (917/2016 - 2:04 PM)

Check Total:

Page 9



Check Number Check Date Fund Name Account Name

Communications

Communications

Communications

Communications

Vision Insu¡ance

Life Insurance

Fruitland Ave Rd Improvements

Accounts Payable

Special Departmental Expense

Professional Services

utilities

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball
Summer Co-Ed Softball League

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Special Departmental Expense

Vendor Name

VERIZONWIRELESS

VERIZONWIRELESS
VERIZONWIRELESS

VENZONWIRELESS

Check Total:

VISION SERVICE PLAN (CA)

Check Total:

VOYA RETIREMENT INSURANCE

Check Total:

WH CONSULTING SERVICES

Check Total:

WALGREENS #6718

Check Total:

V/ARD ENTERPRISES

Check Total:

WEST COAST ARBORISTS, INC.

Check Total:

WEST COAST GAS CO. INC.

Check Total:

CLINTONWILLIAMS
CLINTONWILLIAMS

Check Total:

WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
MNTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE
WINTONHARDWARE

Void Amount

54.04

54.04

206.54

703.67

r,9ó8.61

905.37

905.37

36.26

36.26

50,074.88

50,074.88

t3,420.03

t3,420.03

89.39

89.39

8,t27.00

68634

68634

68634

68634

68635

68636

6863

68638

6864

6Ít642

68643

68643

68643

68643

68643

68643

68643

68643

68640/

09/12t2016

09/t2/2016
09/t2/2016

09112/2016

09/1212016

091t2/20t6

6863/

6864?/

09112/2016 Employee Benefits Fund

09/1212016 Risk Management Fund

09/12/2016 Gas Tax/Sheet Improvement

09112/2016 Water Ente¡prise Fund

09/1212016 Internal Service Fund

09112/2016 GasTax/Streetlmprovement

09/12/2016 Intemal Service Fund

Measure H Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Price Annexation LMA
Intemal Service Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Internal Service Fund

Intemal Service Fund

Gas Tax,/Street Improvement

Gas Tax/Street Improvement

8,12't.00

2L96

09/12/2016

09/t212016

09n2t2016

09/t2/2016
09/t2/20r6
09/12t2016

09/12120r6

0911212016

09112/2016

21.96

195.00

75.00

270.00

3 8.13

4.7 t
15.04

J.75

9.66

10.71

t.29
89.76

134.32

AP-Checks forApproval (917/2016 - 2:04 PM) Page l0



Check Number Check Date Fund Name

68644 09112/2016 General Fund

Account Name

Training

Summer Co-Ed Softball League

Adult Slo-Pitch Softball

Vendor Name

Check Total:

DICKWISDOM

Check Total:

RICHARDA. ZAMARRIPA
RICHARDA. ZAMARRIPA

Check Total:

Report Total:

Void Amount

30'1.37

40.00

40.00

75.00

90.00

574,720.47

6864,5// 09112/2016

091t2/2016

General Fund

General Fund6864s

165.00

AP-Checks forApproval (9/7/2016 - 2:04 PM) Page 11





  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

ACTION MINUTES 
 

August 22, 2016 
 
   
REGULAR SESSION:  (Council Chambers)  
 
The City Council of the City of Atwater met in Regular Session this date at  
6:02 PM in the City Council Chambers located at the Atwater Civic Center,  
750 Bellevue Road, Atwater, California; Mayor Price presiding. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Price.    
 
INVOCATION: 
 
The Invocation was led by Police Chaplain McClellan.    
 
ROLL CALL:        
 
Present:  City Council Members Raymond, Rivero, Vineyard, Mayor Pro 

Tem Bergman, Mayor Price   
Absent:  None 
Staff Present: Deputy City Attorney Ruppel, Interim Police Chief Joseph, 

Community Development Director McBride, Water Systems 
Shift Operator Vinson (representing the Public Works 
Department), Finance Director Deol, City Clerk Del Real, 
Recording Secretary Bengtson-Jennings 

 
SUBSEQUENT NEED ITEMS:  None. 
 
  

 
CITY OF ATWATER 

 

 

Minutes 



City Council Meeting Action Minutes for August 22, 2016 Page 2 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AS AMENDED: 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Price moved to add a non-action item to the agenda, a 
presentation on behalf of the Make-A-Wish Foundation The motion was seconded 
by City Council Member Vineyard and the vote was: Ayes: Bergman, Vineyard, 
Rivero, Raymond, Price; Noes: None; Absent: None. The motion carried.  
   
MOTION:  City Council Member Rivero moved to approve the agenda as 
amended. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bergman and the vote 
was: Ayes: Bergman, Vineyard, Rivero, Raymond, Price; Noes: None; Absent: 
None. The motion carried. 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Make-A-Wish Foundation 
 
Cora Gonzales, a volunteer with the Make-A-Wish Foundation of Central 
California who spoke on behalf of the organization, thanked the City Council and 
the City of Atwater for honoring Kayla Damien’s wish and welcoming her as 
Honorary Mayor of the Day in Atwater on July 4, 2016.   
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: 
 
Notice to the public was read. 
 
LORI JOHNSON, Atwater, spoke once more regarding her claim against the City 
and her frustrations with the City Manager and the City Council due to their lack 
of response. She stated that “we (she and her husband) will not quit until we see 
justice served.”  
 
RICHARD JOHNSON, Atwater, spoke regarding his constitutional rights and how 
he believes they are being violated.  
 
MIKE TEATER, former Code Enforcement Officer, voiced his concerns with how 
the City Council and staff are handling the Johnsons’ claim and wants 
transparency for the public’s sake. 
 
Merced County District 3 Supervisor McDaniel provided an update on several 
items:  
 

 The Board of Supervisors is holding a Small Business Administrative 
Workshop at Castle Commerce Center on August 31, 2016 from 1:30 to 3:30 
PM; the workshop is free to attend.  

 The County’s Human Services Agency has opened its doors at its new 
Castle site, 1920 Commerce Care Way. 

 The District’s Mobile Office Hours in Atwater are the fourth Thursday of 
each month in the City Council Chambers from 1:30 to 3:30 PM. 



City Council Meeting Action Minutes for August 22, 2016 Page 3 
 

 The Board of Supervisors will consider its final FY 2016-17 Budget on 
September 20, 2016 at 11:00 AM. 

 Economic Development at Castle Commerce Center: tech giant Google is 
exercising its option to extend its lease through 2020, possibly bringing 
more personnel to the site; and the County is working with a couple of new 
prospects, one a green tech business that would bring 50 new jobs to the 
County.  

 The Board of Supervisors recently adopted a Housing Element. 

 The Board of Supervisors voted to join Stanislaus and San Joaquin 
counties in the development of an economic analysis of the State Water 
Board’s proposed revision of the Bay-Delta plans.  
  

No one else came forward to speak.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Bergman moved to approve the consent calendar as 
listed. The motion was seconded by City Council Member Vineyard and the vote 
was: Ayes: Vineyard, Bergman, Rivero, Raymond, Price; Noes: None; Absent: 
None. The motion carried.  

 
WARRANTS: 

 
1.  August 22, 2016 
 
ACTION:  Approval of warrants as listed. 
 
MINUTES:  (City Council) 

 
2.  Regular meeting, August 8, 2016 

  
ACTION:  Approval of minutes as listed.  
 
FUNDING AND BUDGET MATTERS: 
 
Treasurer’s Report for the month of July, 2016 (Finance Director Deol) 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Bergman moved to approve the Treasurer’s Report for 
the month of July, 2016. The motion was seconded by Mayor Price and the vote 
was: Ayes: Raymond, Vineyard, Bergman, Rivero, Price; Noes: None; Absent: 
None. The motion carried. 
 
Finance Director Deol provided an update regarding the Measure H fund balance, 
which was reported incorrectly at the recent Citizens’ Oversight Committee for 
Public Safety Transactions and Use Tax meeting. The beginning FY 2015-16 
Measure H fund balance was $869,000, revenue $1.76 million, expenditures $2 
million, shortfall $264,000, and ending fund balance $605,000. She announced for 



City Council Meeting Action Minutes for August 22, 2016 Page 4 
 

the record that the FY 2015-16 books are still open until the end of August; there 
may be minor changes.    
 
Finance Director Deol reported on the status of the recent utility audit project. As 
a result of the audit, the Finance Department discovered $202,000 in lost revenue 
of which $44,000 has been collected so far. The rest will be collected in 
installment payments over the next three (3) years.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Proposed commercial development for “Marketplace at the Colony” located at the North 
West and South West corner of Buhach Road and Juniper Avenue (Community 
Development Director McBride)  
 
Mayor Price opened the public hearing for this item. 
 
LISA MACKENZIE, Atwater, and Civil Engineer Bill Miller, asked numerous 
questions in regard to the project, such as concerning the barrier wall, set-backs, 
noise, traffic, and privacy for nearby residents to name a few.  
 
ERIC LEE, Atwater, spoke in favor of the project and the importance of 
commercial development on that side of town. He spoke of the need for 
landscaping modifications to the center divider on Juniper Avenue as well.    
 
No one else came forward to speak and Mayor Price closed the public hearing. 
 
Community Development Director McBride addressed several of the public’s 
concerns.   
 
Jose Benavides, representing JLB Traffic Engineering, Inc., addressed the traffic 
issues.      
 
MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Bergman moved to certify the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; to adopt 
Resolution No. 2914-16 approving Planned Development Master Plan (PDMP); to 
adopt Resolution No. 2915-16 approving Planned Development Final 
Development Plan (PDFDP); to adopt Resolution No. 2916-16 approving Tentative 
Parcel Map for North West corner of Buhach Road and Juniper Avenue; and to 
adopt Resolution No. 2917-16 approving Tentative Parcel Map for South West 
corner of Buhach Road and Juniper Avenue. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Price and the vote was: Ayes: Rivero, Bergman, Raymond, Vineyard, Price; Noes: 
None; Absent: None. The motion carried. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MATTERS: 
 
City Council comments and requests for future agenda items 
 



City Council Meeting Action Minutes for August 22, 2016 Page 5 
 

City Council Member Raymond had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Bergman asked that the next regular City Council meeting agenda 
include an action item regarding the General Plan and a discussion item 
regarding private counsel. 
 
City Council Member Vineyard offered his condolences to the Olzack and 
MacDonald families. He thanked Interim Police Chief Joseph and his staff for their 
dedication and hard work to make the City safer. He addressed the City Council 
and encouraged each member to continue working together and to refrain from 
postponing important issues.    
 
City Council Member Rivero had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Price announced several upcoming events: Foster Farms Job Fair on 
August 25, 2016 from 10:00 AM to 1:00 PM, 1237 Main Street, Livingston; Kewl 
Cats Veteran’s Benefit Program on August 27, 2016 from 2:00 PM to 7:00 PM, 
Motel Drive, Merced, in which the proceeds will benefit veteran’s programs, 
specifically the Honor Flight program. He announced a request for a joint meeting 
of the City Council, the Community Development and Resources Commission, 
and the Citizens’ Oversight Committee for Public Safety Transactions and Use 
Tax, to be held late September or early October. He asked that the 
Commission/Committee chairpersons submit possible dates. And he spoke of the 
recent passing of former Merced County Supervisor Linn Davis.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting adjourned in memory of Linn Davis and Lorraine Olzack.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:29 PM.  
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK  
 
By: Kim Bengtson-Jennings, 
Recording Secretary 
 













































August 24, 2016  
  
Honorable Mayor and Members  
of the Atwater City Council 

City Council Meeting 
of September 12, 2016 

 
 

RESOLUTION RE-ADOPTING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CODE 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council consider: 
 

 Adopting Resolution No. 2919-16 re-adopting the City of Atwater's Conflict of 
Interest Code. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 87300 et seq., requires every local 
government to conduct a biennial review of its Conflict of lnterest Code to determine 
whether amendments to the Code are necessary.  Amendments may be necessary to 
reflect new or different employee positions within the City, to delete positions that have 
changed or no longer exist, and also to ensure that the Code complies with any 
changes to state law that have occurred within the past two years. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
As part of this year's biennial review, staff has determined that the City's Conflict of 
lnterest Code should be re-adopted.  Resolution No. 2919-16 amends, repeals and 
supersedes all previous adopted and amended resolutions regarding the City of Atwater 
Conflict of lnterest Code. 
 
Amendments to the City's Conflict of lnterest Code must be adopted by  
December 31, 2016.  Upon adoption, the City's Conflict of lnterest Code will be current, 
and the City will have met its obligation to conduct a biennial review of the Code 
pursuant to the requirements of the Political Reform Act. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with updating the City's Conflict of lnterest Code. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
This staff report is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Jeanna Del Real, CMC 
City Clerk/Human Resources Director 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF ATWATER 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 

 

                                                                                                                                    

RESOLUTION NO. 2919-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ATWATER RE-ADOPTING THE CITY OF 
ATWATER CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 87300 et seq., requires 
state and local government agencies to adopt a Conflict of lnterest Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted Regulation, 2 
California Code of Regulations, Section 18730, the terms of which are incorporated 
herein by reference, and which may be amended by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments to the Political 
Reform Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Atwater, hereinafter the “City," amend its Conflict of lnterest 
Code to conform to the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations, Section 18730, and in 
addition, adds definitions in Appendix "A", attached hereto, and amends the list of 
designated City employees in Appendix "B", attached hereto, that shall be required to 
disclose financial interests pursuant to the disclosure category specified in Appendix 
"C", attached hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, all previous resolutions amending the City's Conflict of Interest Code shall 
be repealed and superseded upon the adoption of the amended conflict of interest code 
attached hereto. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Atwater as 
follows: 
 
Section 1:  All previous resolutions amending the City's Conflict of lnterest Code are 
hereby repealed and superseded by Resolution No. 2919-16. 
 
Section 2:  The provisions of Regulation, 2 California Code of Regulations, Section 
18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission are hereby incorporated herein by reference and, along with the attached 
Appendix "B" and Appendix "C", in which City employees are designated and the 
disclosure category is set forth, constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of 
Atwater. 
 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 2 

 

Section 3:  Pursuant to Regulation, 2 California Code of Regulations, Section 18730(b) 
(4), designated employees of the City shall file statements of economic interests with 
the City Clerk.  Any designated employee already required to submit a disclosure 
statement (Form 700) pursuant to Government Code Section 87203 may submit a copy 
of that statement in lieu of any filing required by this Code, provided that no additional 
disclosure would be required by this Code. 
 
Section 4:  Individuals holding the designated positions outlined in Appendix "B" shall 
file their statements with the City Clerk, who shall be and shall perform the duties of the 
filing officer for the City of Atwater.  Statements will be available for inspection and 
reproduction pursuant to Government Code Section 81008. 
 
Section 5:  Any change provided for in this Conflict of lnterest Code shall not affect or 
excuse any offense or act committed or done, or omission, or any penalty or forfeiture 
incurred or accruing under any other Conflict of lnterest Code; nor shall it affect any 
prosecution, suit, or proceeding pending or any judgment rendered in connection with 
any other Conflict of lnterest Code. 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of September, 2016. 
 
AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSENT:      
 
 
  APPROVED 
 
             _____________________________                                                               
             JAMES E. PRICE, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________                                                                           
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 3 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF ATWATER 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

APPENDIX “A” 
 

1. "Public Official" means a member, officer, employee, or consultant of a state or 
local government agency. The term "public official" also includes individuals who 
perform the same or substantially the same duties as an individual holding an office 
or a position listed in Government Code Section 87200, including "other public 
officials who manage public investments" as that term is defined in 2 California Code 
of Regulations Section 18720. 

 
2. "Member" shall include, but not be limited to, salaried or unsalaried members of 

boards or commissions with decision-making authority. A board or commissions 
possess decision-making authority whenever: 

 
(A)  lt may make a final governmental decision; 

  (B)  lt may compel a governmental decision, or it may prevent a 
    governmental decision either by reason of an exclusive power to 
    initiate the decision or by reason of a veto which may not be 
    overridden; or, 

(C)  lt makes substantive recommendations, which are, and over an 
extended period of time have been, regularly approved without 
significant amendment or modification by another public official or 
governmental agency. 

 
3. "Designated Employee" is an officer, employee, member, or consultant of an 

agency whose position is designated in the code because the position entails the 
making or participation in the making of governmental decision which may 
foreseeable have a material effect on any financial interest. (Government Code 
Section 82019) 

(A) Making a governmental decision means the person: 

1. Votes on a matter; 

2. Appoints a person; 

3. Obligates or commits his or her agency to any course of action; 
or, 

4. Enters into any contractual agreement on behalf of his or her 
agency. 
 

(B) Participating in the making of a decision, means the person: 

1. Negotiates, without significant substantive review, with a 
governmental entity or private person regarding the decision; or, 

 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 4 

 

 
 
 
2. Advises or makes recommendations to the decision-maker by 

conducting research or an investigation, preparing or presenting 
a report, analysis or opinion which requires the exercise of 
judgment on the part of the employee and the employee is 
attempting to influence the decision. 
 

(C) The term "designated employee" does not include: 

 Public officials specified in Government Code Section 87200: 

 City Council Members 
 Mayors 
 City Managers 
 City Attorneys 
 City Treasurers 
 Other city, county and local agency public officials who 

manage public investments 

 Solely clerical, ministerial or manual positions 

 Unsalaried members of boards or commissions, which are 
solely advisory 
 

4. "Consultant" means an individual whom, pursuant to a contract with the City of 
Atwater:  

(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to: 

1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 

2. Adopt or enforce a law; 

3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, 
certificate, approval, order or similar authorization or 
entitlement; 

4. Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract 
provided it is the type of contract, which requires agency 
approval; 

5. Grant agency approval to a contract which requires agency 
approval and in which the agency is a party or to the 
specifications for such a contract; 

6. Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar 
item; 

7. Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or 
guidelines for the agency or for any subdivision thereof; or, 

(B)  Serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity 
perform the same or substantially all the same duties for the 
agency that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding 
a position specified in the agency's Conflict of lnterest Code. 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 5 

 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF ATWATER 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

APPENDIX “B” 
 

The following is a listing of those designated individuals who are required to 
submit Statements of Economic interests pursuant to the Political Reform Act of 
1974, as amended: 
 
Public Officials:  
Mayor/Chairperson 

City Council Member/Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Board 
Member/Fire Protection District Board Member/Public lmprovement Corporation 
Board Member/Public Financing Authority Board Member/Housing Authority 
Board Member 

City Manager/Executive Director  

City Attorney/Agency General Counsel/Authority General Counsel  

Finance Officer 

District Treasurer 

 

Community Development and Resources Commissioner 

 

Members:       Disclosure Category 

City Council Boards:  All boards and Commissions Category 1 Fliers 
 
City Council 
 
Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency 
 
Public Financing Authority 
 
Public lmprovement Corporation 
 
Housing Authority 
 
Fire Protection District 
 
Citizen Commissions, Committees, and Boards: 
 
Community Development and Resources Commission 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 6 

 

 
 
 
Designated Positions     Disclosure Category 
Accountant II 
CAL FIRE Battalion Chief 1 
CAL FIRE Unit Chief 1 
City Manager  1 
Chief Building Official 1 
City Clerk  1 
Community Development Director 1 
Community Services Director 1 
Consultants  1 
Deputy City Attorney 1 
Deputy Director of Engineering 1 
Finance Director  1 
Human Resources Director  1 
Public Works Director 1 
Recreation Supervisor 1 
Police Chief  1 
Police Lieutenant 1 
Senior Planner 1 
Sewer Division Manager 1 
Streets Division Manager 1 
Water Division Manager 1 
 
Consultants 
 

*Consultants for purposes of this Conflict of lnterest Code are defined as 

individuals that provide, under contract, information or advice to the City that may 

entails participation in the making of decisions, recommendations, or counsel to 

the City, and which may have a foreseeable material effect on any financial 

interest of the consultant.  Consultants, as defined above, are included in the list 

of designated employees and shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure 

category in the code subject to the following: 

 
The City Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although 

in a "designated position" is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in 

scope and thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements 

described in this code. Such written determination shall include a description of 

the consultant's duties and based upon that description, a statement of the extent 

of the disclosure requirements. The City Manager's determination is a public 

record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and 



Resolution No. 2919-16  Page 7 

 

location as this conflict of interest code. 

 
 

CITY OF ATWATER 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

APPENDIX “C” 
 

 
Disclosure Category 
Individuals holding designated positions must report their interest according to the 

following disclosure category. 

 
Category I – Full Disclosure: 
Interest in real property located within the jurisdiction or within two miles of the 

boundaries of the jurisdiction or within two miles of any land owned or used by the City 

of Atwater; and investments and business positions in business entities, and income, 

including loans; gifts, and travel payments, from all sources. 



2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice

Name of Agency:_C=.=itY,I.......;:;o..:....f:....;A:.:.:twc:.;a=.;t=e..:....r _

Mailing Address: 750 Bellevue Road. Atwater. CA 95301

Contact Person: -,-Je..:....a,-n_n....;..a_D_e..:....I_R--=e....;..a_1 _ Phone No. 209-357-6207

Email: jdelreal@atwater.org Alternate Email: msaavedra@atwater.org

Accurate disclosure is essential to monitor whether officials have conflicts of interest and to
help ensure public trust in government. The biennial review examines current programs to
ensure that the agency's code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or
participate in making governmental decisions.

This agency has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined that (check one BOX):

~ An amendment is required. The following amendments are necessary:

(Check all that apply.)

o Include new positions
o Revise disclosure categories
• Revise the titles of existing positions
o Delete titles of positions that have been abolished andlor positions that no longer make or

participate in making governmental decisions
o Other (describe) _

D The code is currently under review by the code reviewing body.

D No amendment is required. (If your code is over five years old, amendments may be
necessary.)

Verification (to be completed if no amendment is required)

This agency's code accurately designates all positions that make or participate in the making of governmental
decisions. The disclosure assigned to those positions accurately requires that all investments, business
positions, interests in real property, and sources of income that may foreseeably be affected materially by the
decisions made by those holding designated positions are reported. The code includes all other provisions
required by Government Code Section 87302.

Signature of Chief Executive Officer Date

All agencies must complete and return this notice regardless of how recently your code was approved or
amended. Please return this notice no later than October 3, 2016, or by the date specified by your agency, if
earlier, to:

(PLACE RETURN ADDRESS OF CODE REVIEWING BODY HERE)

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN THIS FORM TO THE FPPC.

www.fppc.ca.gov
FPPC Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov (866.275.3772)

Page 1 of 1



 
September 6, 2016 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members  City Council Meeting 
of the Atwater City Council  of September 12, 2016 
 
 

CONGESTION MANAGEMENT AND AIR QUALITY (CMAQ) 
PROJECTS CML-5254(023) WHEEL LOADER REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT; CML-254(024) TRACTOR LOADER REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT; CML-5254(025) REPLACEMENT TWO (2) DUMP TRUCKS 
PROJECT 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council consider: 
 
1. Adopting Resolution No. 2921-16, authorizing and directing the City Manager or 

his designee to execute any agreements or documents, in a form approved by 
the City Attorney, on behalf of the City, relating to CMAQ Projects CML-5254(023 
Wheel Loader Replacement Project; and 
 

2. Adopting Resolution No. 2922-16, authorizing and directing the City Manager or 
his designee to execute any agreements or documents, in a form approved by 
the City Attorney, on behalf of the City, relating to CMAQ Projects CML-
5254(024) Tractor Loader Replacement Project; and 
 

3. Adopting Resolution No. 2923-16, authorizing and directing the City Manager or 
his designee to execute any agreements or documents, in a form approved by 
the City Attorney, on behalf of the City, relating to CMAQ Projects CML-
5254(025) Dump Truck Replacement Project (Two). 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Air Resources Board (ARB) identified particulate emissions from diesel-fueled 
engines as toxic air contaminants in August 1998.  Compared to other air toxics, diesel 
particulate matter emissions are estimated to be responsible for about 70 percent of the 
total ambient air toxic risk. 
 
In February 2013, the City was approved for Congestion Management and Air Quality 
(CMAQ) funding for the purchase of one (1) new, tier 4-powered title 23 Wheel Loader 
to replace an older diesel piece of equipment; one (1) new, tier 4-powered title 23 
Tractor Loader to replace an older diesel piece of equipment; and two (2) new, tier 4-
powered title 23 Dump Trucks to replace two older diesel pieces of equipment. The 
award in the amount of $219,140 will fund 100% of the Wheel Loader Project, $98,053 
will fund 100% of the Tractor Loader Project, and $184,512 will fund 100% of the Dump 
Trucks Project, with no local match to the City.  An authorization to proceed (E-76) was 
approved on June 3, 2016.  



Agenda Report – Resolution No. 2921-16, 2922-16, and 2923-16  Page 2 

 

ANALYSIS: 
As a condition to the payment by the State obligated to this Project, the City of Atwater 
must accept and comply with the special covenants listed in the Program Supplement. 
Program Supplement Agreement No. 018-F (EXHIBIT “A”), Program Supplement 
Agreement No. 019-F (EXHIBIT “B”), Program Supplement Agreement No. 020-F 
(EXHIBIT “C”) adopts and incorporates the Administering Agency State Agreement No. 
10-5254F 15 for Federal Aid entered into between the City of Atwater and the State on 
June 3, 2016. No invoices for reimbursement can be processed until the Agreement is 
fully executed and returned to the Department of Transportation Office of Project 
Implementation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Failure to submit the required Agreement and resolution will cause the awarded funds to 
be disencumbered and/or de-obligated.   
 
The CMAQ grant funding approved for the Wheel Loader was $219,140 with no local 
Match. Funding for this project was budgeted in the General Fund Capital Projects for 
FY 2016-17, General Fund Capital, CMAQ Grant Wheel Loader Replacement, Account 
No. 0003.1080.M002. The CMAQ grant funding approved for the Tractor Loader was 
$98,053 with no local Match. Funding for this project was budgeted in the General Fund 
Capital Projects for FY 2016-17, General Fund Capital, CMAQ Grant Tractor Loader 
Replacement, Account No. 0003.1080.M003. The CMAQ grant funding approved for the 
two (2) Dump Trucks was $184,512 with no local Match. Funding for this project was 
budgeted in the General Fund Capital Projects for FY 2016-17, General Fund Capital, 
CMAQ Grant Dump Trucks Replacement, Account No. 0003.1080.M004.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
This staff report is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
_________________________________ 
Scott McBride 
Community Development Director 

























































 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF ATWATER 
  
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                        

RESOLUTION NO. 2921-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ATWATER AUTHORIZING AN DIRECTING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO CONGESTION 
MANAGEMENT AND AIR QUALITY (CMAQ) 
PROJECT CML-5254(023) WHEEL LOADER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Atwater is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for certain 
projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, Program Supplemental Agreement No. 018-F to Administering Agency-State 
Agreement No. 10-5254F15 is required to proceed with the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, an authorizing Resolution identifying the project and the Official authorized to 
execute documents on behalf of the City must be attached to the Agreement.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Atwater that the City 
Manager, or his/her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to act on the City’s behalf and 
sign all required documents related to CMAQ Project CML-5254(023) Wheel Loader 
Replacement Project. 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of September, 2016. 

 
AYES:     
NOES:  
ABSENT:      APPROVED:    

 
 
 
________________________________                                                                    
JAMES E. PRICE, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF ATWATER 

  
 
 

                                                                                                                                    

RESOLUTION NO. 2922-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ATWATER AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED TO 
CONGESTION MANAGMENET AND AIR QUALITY (CMAQ) 
PROJECT CML-5254(024) TRACTOR LOADER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Atwater is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for 
certain projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, Program Supplemental Agreement No. 019-F to Administering Agency-
State Agreement No. 10-5254F15 is required to proceed with the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, an authorizing Resolution identifying the project and the Official authorized 
to execute documents on behalf the City must be attached to the Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Atwater that 
the City Manager, or his/her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to act on the 
City’s behalf and sign all required documents related to CMAQ Project CML-5254(024) 
Tractor Loader Replacement Project. 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of September, 2016. 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:      APPROVED: 
 
 
       _____________________________                                                               
       JAMES E. PRICE, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________                                                                           
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK  



 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF ATWATER 

  
 
 

                                                                                                                                    

RESOLUTION NO. 2923-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ATWATER AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED TO 
CONGESTION MANAGMENET AND AIR QUALITY (CMAQ) 
PROJECT CML-5254(025) REPLACEMENT OF TWO (2) 
DUMP TRUCKS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Atwater is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for 
certain projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, Program Supplemental Agreement No. 020-F to Administering Agency-
State Agreement No. 10-5254F15 is required to proceed with the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, an authorizing Resolution identifying the project and the Official authorized 
to execute documents on behalf the City must be attached to the Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Atwater that 
the City Manager, or his/her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to act on the 
City’s behalf and sign all required documents related to CMAQ Project CML-5254(025) 
Dump Truck Replacement Project. 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of September, 2016. 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:      APPROVED: 
 
 
       _____________________________                                                               
       JAMES E. PRICE, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________                                                                           
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK  



August 22, 2016 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members  City Council Meeting 
of the Atwater City Council  of  September 12, 2016 
 
 

AWARDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 
HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) CYCLE 7  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council consider: 
 
1. Awarding a contract, in a form approved by the City Attorney, for Professional 

Services for Preliminary Engineering (PE) of the Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) Cycle 7 for Signal Modification at Shaffer Road and Juniper 
Avenue, to Mott MacDonald of Gilroy, California in an amount not to exceed 
$46,610; and 

 
2. Authorizing and directing the City Manager to execute the Professional Services 

Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In April of 2015, staff submitted a Cycle 7 Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
Application on behalf of the City for replacing existing permissive left turn phasing for 
Juniper Avenue with protective left turn phasing (split phasing); installing ADA compliant 
ramps, high visibility x-walks & ADA compliant ped push buttons; and to modify the 
signing and striping at the intersection of Shaffer Road at Juniper Avenue. 
 
On December 7, 2015, staff received notification that the City was awarded the HSIP 
Cycle 7 funding (HSIP7-10-001) with a total project amount of $183,000, a local match 
of 10%, and Federal Funds of $164,700 (attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A”). 
 
Staff solicited proposals for Professional Services to perform Preliminary Design 
Engineering (PE) and Construction Engineering (CE) for the Signal Modification Project 
at the intersection of Shaffer Road and Juniper Avenue, City Project No. 16-01.   
 
Proposal notices were distributed on July 11, 2016 with a due date of August 2, 2016 by 
5:00 PM. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
One (1) proposal was received.  After review and careful consideration of the selection 
criteria, a sub-committee made up of two (2) staff members unanimously made a 
recommendation, based on budget, experience and approach, to select the proposal 
submitted by Mott MacDonald of Gilroy, California in an amount not to exceed $46,610 
(attached hereto as EXHIBIT “B”). The Professional Services Agreement, Scope of 



 
Agenda Report – Professional Services Agreement for Mott MacDonald Page 2 

 

Services, and Fee Schedule for the Preliminary Design and Engineering for the Signal 
Modification Project at the intersection at Shaffer Road and Juniper Avenue is attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT “C”. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Sufficient funding for this project is contained in the Capital Improvement Plan for 
FY 2016/17; General Fund Capital, HSIP Grant, Account No. 0003.1080.N001.  The 
City’s local match will consist of In-Kind and Volunteer Assistance. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

This staff report is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
_________________________________ 
Scott McBride 
Community Development Director 
 
 













































September 6, 2016  
  
Honorable Mayor and Members  
of the Atwater City Council 

City Council Meeting  
of September 12, 2016 

 
 

MONTHLY REVIEW OF LOCAL DROUGHT EMERGENCY 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council consider: 
 

 Reaffirming the facts and findings in Resolution No. 2823-15 declaring the 
existence of a local drought emergency. 

 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
In January 2014, the Governor declared a state of emergency in the State of California 
due to current drought conditions.  As a result of the Governor’s declaration, on May 26, 
2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2823-15 declaring the existence of a 
local drought emergency and Urgency Ordinance No. CS 966 amending the City’s 
current water conservation program in an effort to curtail effects of the current and 
future statewide drought conditions within the City of Atwater.  
 
Government Code section 8630(c) requires the City review the need for continuing the 
local drought emergency at least once every 30 days until the City Council terminates 
the local drought emergency.  Staff has reviewed the City’s need for continued 
conservation in line with the urgency ordinance and believes there is a continued need 
for the local drought emergency procedures contained therein.  
 
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council reaffirm the facts and findings in 
Resolution No. 2823-15 declaring the existence of a local drought emergency.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Short-term water saving actions will have minimal staff and monetary impacts.  Longer-
term actions may require additional resources, which would be presented to the City 
Council for consideration after Staff has had an opportunity to further explore their 
feasibility.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
This staff report is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

/s/ Thomas H. Terpstra 

Thomas H. Terpstra 
City Attorney 









NOTABLE CASES 

AUGUST 2016 

 

1. The Atwater Police Department investigated an injury hit & run incident on 
Atwater Boulevard and First Street. During the investigation, a suspect was 
sought and located by officers fleeing the scene on foot.  The suspect failed to 
comply with officers, as a result the Atwater Police Department K9 (Boss) was 
deployed.  The suspect was then contained by (Boss) and arrested by officers.  

 
2. The Atwater Police Department was involved in a pursuit of a stolen vehicle that 

nearly struck an officers vehicle. The vehicle entered two separate cities and 
eventually crashed in Ballico. The vehicle was recovered, however the suspect 
fled on foot.  
 

3. The Atwater Police Department investigated a shooting incident at the 2300 
block of Palm Avenue. During the investigation a victim of the shooting was 
discovered and treated by medical staff. A suspect was eventually identified and 
a warrant for his arrest has been issued.  
 

4. The Atwater Police Department assisted the Merced County Probation 
Department in probation checks in the City of Atwater. As a result, two individuals 
were arrested and one firearm was recovered.  

 
5. The Atwater Police Department conducted two search warrants on illegal 

marijuana grow houses.  Once of the residence was at the 1600 block of 
Drakeley Avenue and the other was at the 1600 block of Elm Avenue. Over 
$300,000.00 of marijuana was recovered and destroyed.  

 

6. An off-duty Atwater Police Officer observed a stolen vehicle that he was 
investigating on his previous shift.  Eventually the CHP assisted because it was 
outside of the city limits and a pursuit ensued. The vehicle eventually stopped 
and the suspect fled on foot. The suspect was identified and investigation on-
going.  
 

7. The Atwater Police Department investigated a stabbing incident at the 1700 
block of Sycamore Avenue. As a result the victim was treated and a suspect was 
taken into custody.       
                                                                                                                    

 In August 2016 a DUI check point was performed as well as a traffic enforcement 
detail.  
 

 

 



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2016

310

188
170

135

56 55
32 25

14 14
26

Info Case Booking (9) Part II Citation
(6) Theft F.I. TC (4) Assault
(7) Veh Theft/Rec Registrant Other Crimes

BCS Code by Year

2016 Total

Info Case 310 310

Booking 188 188

(9) Part II 170 170

Citation 135 135

(6) Theft 56 56

F.I. 55 55

TC 32 32

(4) Assault 25 25

(7) Veh Theft/Rec 14 14

Registrant 14 14

Other Crimes 26 26

Grand Total 1025 1025

9/1/2016

Incident Directory Report

msaavedra
Text Box
Calls for service                                       2300

msaavedra
Text Box
     August 2016



Incident Directory Report

 1(1) Homicide Supports Drill Down

 2(2) Rape Supports Drill Down

 2(3) Robbery Supports Drill Down

 25(4) Assault Supports Drill Down

 12(5) Burglary Supports Drill Down

 56(6) Theft Supports Drill Down

 14(7) Veh Theft/Rec Supports Drill Down

 170(9) Part II Supports Drill Down

 188Booking Supports Drill Down

 135Citation Supports Drill Down

 9DUI Supports Drill Down

 55F.I. Supports Drill Down

 310Info Case Supports Drill Down

 14Registrant Supports Drill Down

 32TC Supports Drill Down

{INCRPLF.DTERP8} >= "20160801" and {INCRPLF.DTERP8} <= "20160831" and {INCRPLF.AGENCY}= "A"

Page 2 of 2



                
The stats for the DUI Checkpoint are as follows: 
 
               715 vehicles put through the checkpoint 
               571 vehicles contacted. 
               13 arrests 
               9-suspended and tows 
               4-unlicensed 
               1-felony DUI 
 
               Stats for the Sat Patrol are as follows: 
 
               32 vehicles stopped. 
               14 citations issued 
               2 suspended license and tows 
 



AVIPS YEAR TASK TOTALS AS OF AUGUST 2016

TASKS JÄN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JIJL AUG SEPT (rcT NOV DEC YEANLYTOTÄLS

Administsatiø l3 9 14 7 16 3 0 3 65

Animal Control 0 I 0 0 2 2 I 6

Citiæn Assistg 2 l1 13 17 27 21 4 14 111

CræingGurd 0 10 l5 15 24 I 0 4 69

DUI Check Point 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 I t

Evidenæ Tmport 9 2 l0 15
,| 4 2 5 54

Feml CatProgm 0 0 0 ) 0 0 0 3

Foot ?ahol 1 0 1 0 0 I 9

Fueml 8 4 4 7 23 27 l9 0 92

Gamge Salo 0 J 12 22 25 16 22 10 110

HmoC?ræls 54 Æ 90 70 91 54 19 23 449

ùfercedPapwøk 2l 2l 33 3l 30 3l 2l 2t3

Neigbhorhood Watch t6 4 12 5 14 4 0 14 69

Notice of Violatim 10 l9 5 t4 t4 l9 4 5 90

Oftce 1l 10 6 8 8 9 4 4 60

Pædo Coutsol 0 2 I 0 5 0 t2

Pam Tiokets 24 24 25 35 35 3a 21 21 tto

Radr Tniler 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 11

SþRmowl 73 '11 124 260 152 't6 230 't4 1000

Tmffc Control t4 9 9 11 )) 20 5 tt2

Tnining l1 16 24 l3 I J 0 0 68

Vehicle Patrol 35 3'l 45 6t 75 5'7 3t 32 373

Watq CmtactÆlyq I 10 ? 138 1'12 26s 90 98 781

Water Notice Givæ 0 I 0 J 23 21 54 2t 123

Other 5 35 a2 57 27 198 35 l3 452

Toúal TaslßnVlontb 251 345 s36 't92 79'1 81s 586 381 0 0 0 0 4563

Total Eoun¡lVlonth 309.'t5 237.5Q 352.50 361.00 528.50 39? 25 306.25 228;t5 2721.50

Totsl M¡lerMonth 2264.00 1 I 12.00 1926 00 2145 00 2280.QO 1'13't.o0 1326.00 I 591 00 14381.00

vorunteer Ruth Azevedo v-8



Fire Svc. Calls Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 June-16 July-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16
Structure Fire 3 2 5 2 2 3 3 5
Other Fires 21 13 17 28 22 24 24 20
Vehicle Accidents 9 15 15 20 17 19 17 15
Medical Aid 241 234 240 245 236 228 243 242
Haz-Mat/ Hazardous condition 7 1 11 7 2 6 8 6
Public Assistance/ Service Calls 13 25 18 21 22 26 24 21
Total 294 290 306 323 301 306 319 309
Weed Abatement
Weed abatement properties inspected 0 0 0 60 80 64 20 0
Number of properties abated by contractors 0 0 0 0 3 5 3 0
# of properties serviced by most used contractor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Avg weed abatements per contractor 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0
Projects
Hydrants inspected/serviced 0 10 20 5 8 10 6 4
Public education [qty. of presentations] 1 3 13 11 10 5 5 6
Hose Testing 0 0 0 0 75 660 0 0
Buisness Inspection 32 45 43 42 40 19 38 32
Training Sessions 6 12 30 10 13 15 8 2
Reserve Program
# hours worked 96 70 289 79 178 126 163 96
Training Hours 7 8 72 12 48 18 30 10
Meetings
Staff meetings attended 3 3 2 4 3 4 2 2
City Council meetings attended 2 1 2 2 2 2 1 1
Public Safety meetings attended 2 1 0 1 1 3 2 1

l d d l i / i i iLocal, State, and Federal meetings/activities 6 8 5 10 6 12 10 8



  Page 1 

Public Works Department 
Project/Activity Report for August 2016 

 
STREETS & BUILDINGS DIVISION 
 

 Filled potholes at the following locations throughout the City using approximately 
1700 pounds of patching material: 

o Corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Laurel Avenue. 
o Various locations on Fruitland Avenue between Shaffer Road and Winton 

Way. 
o Various location on First Street between Fortuna Avenue and Linden 

Street. 
o Various locations on Center Street. 
o In the roadway in front of 910 Rushmore Drive. 
o In the roadway in front of 2595 Linden Street. 

 

 Worked in a coordinated effort with Code Enforcement to clean up four (4) 
separate transient camps that were located on the South side of Atwater 
Boulevard between Shaffer Road and Packers Street. 

 

 Performed sidewalk repair/replacement at the following locations: 
o 729 Mulberry Avenue. 
o 2768 Fifth Street. 
o 2575 Winton Way. 

 

 Performed installation of traffic signs at the following locations: 
o No Stopping signs on the West and East sides of Winton Way between 

Atwater Boulevard and Winton Way. 
o Red and amber warning lights were installed on new stop signs at Winton 

Way and Olive Avenue. 
o No Stopping at Any Time signs on Bell Lane in front of AM/PM Gas 

Station. 
 

 Performed maintenance to lighted crosswalks at the following locations: 
o Replaced non-functioning controller for crosswalk at Third Street and 

Atwater Boulevard. 
o Repaired non-functioning lights for crosswalk at Shaffer Road and Della 

Drive (Thomas Olaeta School). 
o Repaired damaged wires for crosswalk on Herman Street (Aileen Colburn 

School). 
o Repaired damaged wires for crosswalk on Shaffer Road (Shaffer School). 
o Due to installation of new stop signs, disabled crosswalk at Winton Way 

and Olive Avenue. 
 

 Repaired fourteen (14) non functioning Street Lights at the following locations: 
o Nebela Drive – Pole # A0986M 



  Page 2 

o Buhach Road – Pole # A0322 
o Buhach Road – Pole # A0325 
o 1643 August Lane – Pole # A0579 
o Manzanita Drive – Pole # A0366 
o Augusta Lane – Pole # A0550M 
o Clipper Drive – Pole # A0370 
o Lagoon Avenue – Pole # A0361 
o Pacemaker Drive – Pole # 505 
o 2021 Sola Court – Pole # A0768 
o 2471 Granite Drive – Pole # A0927M 
o Corner of Avenue One and Miramonte Drive – Pole # A0884M 
o 1959 Faxon Drive – Pole # A0907M 
o 1793 Cottonwood Avenue – Pole # A0309 

 

 Maintenance and Repairs to Buildings: 
o Prepared City Manager’s Office at City Hall to be occupied by City 

Manager Pietro. 
o Repaired faulty door lock in Police Department Dispatch Center. 
o Repaired broken chain on automatic gate at entrance to Police 

Department. 
o Repaired broken chain on main entrance gate at Corporation Yard. 
o Changed door entry code at all City owned buildings. 

 
WATER DIVISION 
 

 Replaced two (2) broken Residential Water Service Lines from the City water 
main to the City’s shut off valve at the following locations: 

o 2600 Fiesta Court 
o 1506 Valley Street 

 

 Performed five (5) water line upgrades from the City shut off valve at the 
following locations: 

o 1630 Elm Avenue 
o 1501 Castle Street 
o 2262 Alabama Street 
o 341 Drakeley Avenue 
o 1200 Sixth Street 

 

 Performed irrigation system repairs at Veterans Park. 
 

 Repaired mal-functioning backflow device for irrigation system at entrance to 
Silva Ranch Subdivision. 
 

 Repaired a sink hole in the roadway at 2200 Palora Avenue. 
 



  Page 3 

 Replaced cold asphalt patch with permanent asphalt at 65 separate locations 
throughout the City where water line breaks had previously occurred. 
 

 Performed 281 delinquent water shut offs that were on the disconnected list. 
 

 Replaced non-functioning booster pump for irrigation system at Joan Faul Park. 
 

 Replaced faulty four (4) inch water meter at Buhach Colony High School. 
 

 Conducted lead and copper sampling at various well sites throughout the City, 
which is required by the State every three (3) years. 
 

SEWER DIVISION 
 

 Performed chemical and mechanical weed abatement at the following locations: 
o Industry Way Storm Pond 
o Atwater South Subdivision Storm Pond 
o Silva Ranch Storm Pond 
o North Storm Pond 
o America West Subdivision Storm Pond 
o East Manzanita Storm Pond 
o Pajaro Dunes Subdivision Storm Pond 
o Stone Creek Subdivision Storm Pond 
o Redwood Estates Subdivision Storm Pond 
o West Manzanita Avenue Storm Pond 
o Albiani Park Storm Pond 

 

 Performed routine repairs at the following Sewer Lift Stations: 
o Replace faulty phase monitor at Mello Ranch Sewer Lift Station. 
o Replaced faulty exhaust fan at Sowell Sewer Lift Station. 

 

 Checked and cleaned Sewer Lift Stations and Sewer Wet Wells as needed. 
 

 Inspected pump motors at Storm Pump Stations and refilled with oil as needed. 
 

 Logged daily sewer flows at the following Sewer Lift Stations: 
o USP Atwater Sewer Lift Station 
o Castle Sewer Lift Station 
o Old Base Housing Sewer Lift Station. 

 

 Cleaned Sewer Main Lines at various locations throughout the City. 
 

 Continued to work with personnel from USP Atwater to remove wood chips, 
stumps and other large pieces of wood from the Corporation Yard and City Dump 
Site to help eliminate the chance of catching fire. 
 



  Page 4 

 Trimmed existing trees and removed stumps from perimeter of Albiani Park 
Storm Pond. 
 

 Repaired sink holes at the following locations: 
o Within the roadway at East Grove Avenue and Almador Terrace. 
o In the City owned Alley just North of Nacho’s Tire Shop at the corner of 

Atwater Boulevard and Winton Way. 
 
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
 

 Preformed routine service/maintenance on 13 City vehicles. 
 

 Performed specialty repairs on 30 City vehicles. 
 

 Performed mandatory 90 day inspection on Water Systems Truck, New Vac Con 
Truck, Old Vac Con Truck and 10 Wheel Dump Truck.  

 

 Installed equipment storage trays in Police Units (Vehicle # 2037 and Vehicle # 
2038). 
 

 Responded to several calls for service for Public Safety Vehicles. 
 

 Performed A/C Repairs and A/C Recharge to several City Vehicles throughout 
the entire fleet. 
 

PARKS DIVISION 
 

 Landscape Maintenance Districts: 
o Performed manual weed abatement and general maintenance within the 

medians on Commerce Avenue, Buhach Road, East Juniper Avenue. 
o Performed manual weed abatement and general maintenance to street 

side landscape at Legacy Estates-Aspenwood, Sandlewood Square, 
Atwater South, and Price Annexation. 

o Continued bi-weekly mowing schedule of all turf areas within each LMD. 
 

 General Park Maintenance: 
o Filled rodent holes, installed bait stations and performed other general 

maintenance at Joan Faul Park and Manuel Bairos in preparation for the 
Youth Soccer Season. 

o Prepared Bloss Home Grounds and Bloss Park for Atwater Historical 
Society’s Annual Meeting/Dinner that will be held on Saturday, September 
10, 2016. 

o Trimmed overgrown hedges along fence line at Power-Line Park. 
o Repaired non-functioning track lighting at BMX Track in Veterans Park. 
o Reinstalled see-saw at Ralston Park Play Structure that was damaged 

due to vandalism. 



  Page 5 

o Replaced parts and repaired drinking fountains on the new restroom 
building at Veterans Park that were damaged due to vandalism. 

o Repaired security lighting in E.L. Walters Park that was damaged due to 
vandalism. 

o Conducted minor repairs to trailer that is used to transport mowers. 
 

 Continued bi-weekly mowing schedule for parks and all other turf areas within the 
City. Sports fields that are utilized on a daily basis are mowed weekly. 

 

 Conducted three (3) separate irrigation system repairs/upgrades at various park 
sites and landscaped areas. 

 

 Street Tree Work 
o Twelve (12) tree removals 
o Three (3) limb failure removals 
o Thirty (30) structural/clearance prunings 
o Six (6) stump removals 

 
GRAFFITI ABATEMENT 
 

 Worked with Environmental Compliance Resources, the City’s Graffiti Abatement 
Contractor, to remove and paint over graffiti at various locations throughout the 
City, to include 10 separate street signs. This work was performed with 35.0 man 
hours during the month of August 2016. The total amount of graffiti removed 
during this time period was approximately 5,234 square feet. 







September 1, 2016  
  
Honorable Mayor and Members  
of the Atwater City Council 

City Council Meeting  
of September 12, 2016 

 
 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE MISCELLANEOUS FEE 
SCHEDULE  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council consider: 
 
1. Opening the public hearing and take any testimony given; and 
 
2. Adopting Resolution No. 2918-16 amending the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At their regular meeting of February 12, 2007 City Council adopted Resolution No. 
2235-07 establishing a citywide fee structure, “Miscellaneous Fee Schedule.  The 
Miscellaneous Fee Schedule has been amended from time to time by resolution to 
amend said fees and changes for described services.   
 
Staff has had each Department review their Miscellaneous Fees and they have made 
adjustments where necessary. 
 
A public hearing has been noticed for September 12, 2016 to consider amending the 
Miscellaneous Fee Schedule. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
This staff report is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

/s/ Lakhwinder Deol  
Lakhwinder Deol  
Finance Director  
 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF ATWATER 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2918-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ATWATER APPROVING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE MISCELLANEOUS FEE 
SCHEDULE  

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Atwater’s Miscellaneous Fee Schedule is adopted by resolution; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 12, 2007 City Council adopted Resolution No. 2235-07 
establishing a Citywide fee structure, “Miscellaneous Fee Schedule;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule has been amended from time to time by 
resolution to amend said fees and changes for described services; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing has been noticed for September 12, 2016 to consider 
amending the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Atwater as 
follows: 

 
A. The purpose of the fees set forth in EXHIBIT “A” of this Resolution is to recover 

up to the full, lawfully recoverable costs incurred by the City. 
 

B. Resolution No. 2235-07 is hereby amended to modify fees as shown in  
EXHIBIT “A”, attached hereto and made a part of herein. 
 

C. Effective Date.  All new and/or increased fees shall be effective upon adoption 
of this resolution with the exception of fees established in accordance with 
Government Code Section 66017.  Development related new and/or increased 
fees shall be effective sixty (60) days following the effective date of this 
Resolution. 

 
 
 



Resolution No. 2918-16  Page 2 
 

 
D. Repealer.  These fees shall supersede the corresponding fees previously 

established by the City.  All previously adopted and confliction fees, and all 
Resolutions and other actions of the City Council are hereby repealed to the 
extent they conflict with the contents of this resolution.  
 

E. Severability. The individual fees and charges set forth in EXHIBIT "A" of this 
Resolution and portions of this Resolution are severable. Should any of the fees 
or charges or any portion of this Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and 
unenforceable by a body of competent jurisdiction, then the remaining fees, 
charges and/or Resolution portions shall be and continue in full force and effect, 
except as to those fees, charges, and/or Resolution portions that have been 
adjudged invalid. The City Council of the City of Atwater hereby declares that it 
would have adopted each of the fees and charges set forth in EXHIBIT "A" of 
this Resolution, and this Resolution and each section, subsection, clause, 
sentence, phrase and other portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or 
more of the fees, charges, or sections, subsections, clauses, sentences, 
phrases or other portions of this Resolution may be held invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 12th day of September, 2016 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
                 

          ________________________________ 
JAMES E. PRICE, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
JEANNA DEL REAL, CMC 
CITY CLERK 
 
 



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Cost Recovery, Legal Services Actual Cost

Cost Recovery, Liability Claim Processing Actual Cost

Notary Services (as set by GC 8211) No COLA associated $10 per signature

Mailed Copies of City Council Agenda (per fiscal year) $33

Mailed Copies of City Council Minutes (per fiscal year) $31

$111

Copy of City Council Video DVD $9

Final Budget (summary) $10

Final Budget $40

Copy of Municipal Code to CD $9

Preliminary Budget $28

Mailed Copies of City Council and Planning Agendas and Minutes (per 
fiscal year)

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

y g

Annual Financial Statement $25

Five Year Capital Improvement Budget $16

Voucher $29

Business License Listing $22

Mailing Labels for Business License $29

Abatement Lien $37

Photocopies (first page) $3

Photocopies (per copy of B/W) $0.09

Photocopies (per copy of color) $0.16

Returned Checks $35

Donation Bin Permit/Renewal Processing Fee $50 annually

Donation Bin Permit Sticker (replacement) $10

Research Actual Cost

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

1 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

BUILDING DIVISION:

Building Inspection Fee (minimum 1 hour) $88 per hour 

PLANNING DIVISION:

General Plan (Copy or Disk) $50

General Plan EIR (Copy or Disk) $54

Specific Plan Application $9,017

Specific Plan Preparation Actual Cost plus 10%

Housing Element (Copy or Disk) $34

General Plan or Zoning Map Reproduction $12

Street Tree Master Plan $28

Annexation Application $2,931 plus $115 per acre

$181

$181
Environmental Assessment (Review of private prepared document)  Actual Cost plus 10%

Actual Cost plus 10%

Environmental Impact Report Preparation Actual Cost plus 10%

General Plan Amendment Preparation $1,813

Home Occupation Permit $168

Lot Line Adjustment $601

Lot Merger $601

Monthly Building Activity Reports (per fiscal year) $26

Pre-zoning $1,813

Reversion to Acreage $601

Sign Review $143

Environmental Assessment Preparation for Private Development Project 

Appeal of Staff Decision to Community 
Development & Resources Commission

Appeal of Community Development & 
Resources Commission Decision to City 
Council

2 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Site & Architectural Plan Review $914

Tentative Subdivision Map $2,915 plus $58 per lot

Tentative Parcel Map $ 1,795 plus $58 per lot

Condominium Conversion Actual Cost plus 10%

Conditional Use Permit $921

Variance $932

Zone Change $1,730

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $1,730

Time Extension Request Application Original Application Fee

Planned Development Zone:

   Master Plan Application $1,974

   Final Development Plan Application $1,974

   Planned Development Amendment: $1,003

   Development Agreement Preparation Actual Cost plus 10%

ENGINEERING DIVISION:

Cost Recovery, Legal Services Actual Cost plus 10%

Standard Specification Book $29

3% of value ( $100 minimum)

Map or Document Research (minimum 1 hour) Actual Cost 

Site Improvement & SWPP Plan Check and Inspection  - City Staff  3% of value

Actual Cost plus 10%

Swimming Pool Permits $29

Encroachment Permit for Utilities (AT&T, PG&E, etc.) $186

Inspections for Public Utilities - City Staff Actual Cost

Inspections for Public Utilities - Consulting Engineer Actual Cost plus 10%

Encroachment Permit & Inspection for any work in 
Public Right of way 

Site Improvement and  SWPP Plan Check  and Inspection- Consulting 
Engineer

3 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Well Construction (except drinking water) $233

Well Abandonment $233

Driveway Approach Replacement $233

Sidewalk Replacement $227

Street Cuts $314

*Single Trench Deposit (held for 12 months) $2,207

*Multi Trench Deposit (12 months from excavation of last trench) $5,807

*Trench deposits are not required for projects covered under a warranty bond

Site Improvement Plan Inspection 3% of value

PUBLIC WORKS:

Administrative Fee 15% for all billable charges

Street Sweeper and Clean-Up Fee (minimum 2 hours) Actual Cost
Barricade Rental $6 each-first day, $1 each-

each day after

Emergency Labor, Equipment and Materials Actual Cost 
Deposit $524 plus 

installation $45 plus $5 
per thousand gallons of 

usage
Delinquent Back Flow Testing $100 plus actual cost for 

repair parts if needed

Water Problem (call out) Evaluation (minimum 2 hours) Actual Cost 

Red Tags (second and subsequent notices) Actual Cost

Commercial Recycling Actual Cost plus 11%

POLICE:

Copies .10 (per page)

Photos
$15 per CD; $1 per page if printed

Hydrant Use or Construction Water                   
(meter cost plus actual cost)

4 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Stored Vehicle at Tow Yard
$52 per day

False Alarms (within a 12 month period at a single site) False alarms are not subject to CPI Adjustment

False Alarms (first and second incident) $0

False Alarms (third thru fifth**) $51

False Alarms (sixth and subsequent**) $101

False Alarms (maximum fee per day) $253

Domestic Fowl/Animal Permit (per animal) $3

Cats/Dogs Redeemed (first occurrence) $52

Cats/Dogs Redeemed (second occurrence) $105

A i l t P d R t d b O $78

**If both Police and Fire respond to false alarm, only one charge shall be assessed per incident

Animals to Pound, Requested by Owner $78

Cat Traps (deposit) $66

Cat Traps (per day) $2

Clearance Letter $15

Dance Permit $26

Fingerprint Card $26

Bicycle License $5

Second Hand Dealer/Pawn Broker License (initial) $31

Second Hand Dealer/Pawn Broker License (renewal) $19

Alcohol Consumption Permit (City property, per event) $26

Solicitor Permit (non-profit) $10

Solicitor Permit (profit) $33

Handgun Dealer Permit (initial) $31

Handgun Dealer Permit (renewal) $18

Neighborhood Watch Program Actual Cost

5 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Police Reports, Crime/Accident (first 4 pages) $12

Jail Booking County Cost plus 15%

Citation Sign-Off (for non-Atwater resident) $14

Stored Vehicle Release $211

Repossession Filing Fee (mandated by State Gov. Code 41612) $15

Concealed Weapon Permit (initial) $56

Concealed Weapon Permit (renewal) $10

Emergency Response (Gov. Code 53150-53158) Actual Cost plus 15%

Amplified Sound Permit $27

Taxi Cab Permit (initial) $27

Taxi Cab Permit (renewal) $15

FIRE:

1,250 GPM (16 hour maximum) $59

1,500 GPM (16 hour maximum) $63

SUV (16 hour maximum) $76

Pick-Up (16 hour maximum) $57

Works Comp. Actual Cost

Administration (OES) $0

Low Hazard Inspection (businesses, industries, merchandise):

1 - 5,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $78

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $86

5,001 - 10,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $86

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $96

10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 
6 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $97

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $107

20,001 - 40,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $151

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $160

40,001 - 80,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $165

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $174

80,001 - 120,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $180

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $190

120,001 - 150,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $257

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $267

150,001 - 200,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $334

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $342

200,001+ sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $411

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $419

1 - 5,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $92

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $100

5,001 - 10,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $106

Moderate-High Hazard Inspection (50+ gather, education facility, high fire area, hospitals, residential, 
storage):

7 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $114

10,001 - 20,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $115

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $124

20,001 - 40,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $173

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $181

40,001 - 80,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $192

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $201

80,001 - 120,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $207

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $217

120,001 - 150,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $298

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $307

150,001 - 200,000 sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $387

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $397

200,001+ sq. ft. (first inspection) Suspended 9/23/13 

   First Re-Inspection (not-cleared) $478

   Second Re-Inspection (not cleared) $487

Fire Reports $11

Street Spills $55 plus Actual Cost

Medical Assistance

False Alarms (within a 12 month period at a single site) False alarms are not subject to COLA

8 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

False Alarms (first and second incident) $0

False Alarms (third thru fifth**) $51

False Alarms (sixth and subsequent**) $101

False Alarms (maximum fee per day) $253

$83

$168

Daycare Facilities (more than 6 children, State mandated inspection) $83

Fire Safety Application Review $168

Fire Safety Plan Review $168

Board and Care Facilities (full time patient care, State mandated 
inspection, 7 - 50 occupants)

Board and Care Facilities (full time patient care, State mandated 
inspection, over 50 occupants)

**If both Police and Fire respond to false alarm, only one charge shall 
be assessed per incident.

y $

Fireworks and Pyrotechnics $244

Occupancy Permits $54

Penalty Charges (unauthorized occupancy) $114

Tents and Air-Supported Structures (per 200 sq. ft., except for camping) $92
Basic Fire Inspection Rates:

Consultation $92

Fire Cause Investigation $92

Apparatus and Equipment $64

Stand-by or Fire Watch $112

Christmas Tree Lots or Sale Areas at Car Sales $49

Tanks: Hazardous Material Storage, Installation/Removal $112

Aerosol Products Permit (retail storage, under exempt amounts per sq. ft.) $100

Aerosol Products Permit (warehouse and storage) $201

Aircraft Repair Hanger $100

Aircraft Refueling Vehicle (initial) $151

9 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Aircraft Refueling Vehicle (renewal) $100

Asbestos Removal Permit $151

Automobile Wrecking Yard $151

Battery System $201

Bowling Pin or Alley Refinishing (initial) $201

Bowling Pin or Alley Refinishing (renewal) $159

Candles/Open Flame in Assembly Area (single use permit) $35

Candles/Open Flame in Assembly Area (on-going facility permit) $159

Carnivals and Fairs $113

Cellulose Nitrate Film $204

Cellulose Nitrate Storage $204

Combustible Fiber Storage $250

Combustible Material Storage $113

Compressed Gas, Store/Handle/Use (initial) $204

Compressed Gas, Store/Handle/Use (renewal) $113

Commercial Rubbish Handling Operation (initial) $159

Commercial Rubbish Handling Operation (renewal) $113

Cryogen Use, Plan Check/Install/Inspection/Use (initial) $315

Cryogen Use, Plan Check/Install/Inspection/Use (renewal) $126

Dry Cleaning Plants (initial) $204

Dry Cleaning Plants (renewal) $159

Dust Producing Operation (initial) $204

Dust Producing Operation (renewal) $159

Explosive or Blasting Agent (permit and 2 blasts) $159

Explosive or Blasting Agent (more than 2 blasts) $49

Fireworks Ground Display $113

10 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Fireworks, Pyrotechnic Special Effects (theatrical/movies) $113

Fireworks, Aerial Display (includes ground display) $250

Flammable or Combustible Liquids $250

Retail Storage (under exempt amount per control area) $49

Pipeline, Operations/Excavation $113

Containers/Tanks (initial) $250

Containers/Tanks (renewal) $159

Underground Tanks $113

Tank Removal $159

Tank Vehicles (initial) $159

Tank Vehicles (renewal) $113

Fruit Ripening $113

Fumigation or Thermal Insecticides Fogging $113

$113

Hazardous Materials, Storage/Handle/Use (initial) $401

Hazardous Materials, Storage/Handle/Use (renewal) $159

Hazardous Production Materials $309

High Piled Combustible Stock (initial) $309

High Piled Combustible Stock (renewal) $204

LPG - Non Single Family Dwelling $204

LPG - Single Family Dwelling $113

Liquid or Gas Fueled Vehicles or Equipment in Assembly $113

Lumber Yards $159

Magnesium Working $204

Mail Covered $204

Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Station $204

Hazardous Materials, Retail Storage (under exempt amount per control 
area)

11 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Motor Vehicle Refueling Unit $204

Open Fires (includes bonfires & burn permits) $49

Organic Coating (initial) $398

Organic Coating (renewal) $306

Ovens, Industrial Baking or Drying (initial) $159

Ovens, Industrial Baking or Drying (renewal) $113

Places of Assembly - Not Part "A" Occupancy Plan Review:

   50-100 People $116

   101-300 People $207

   Over 300 People $299

Radioactive Materials (initial) $204

Radioactive Materials (renewal) $113

Refrigeration Equipment, Install/Operate (initial) $250

Refrigeration Equipment, Install/Operate (renewal) $159

Repair Garages $113

Special Use/Event Permit $113

Spraying or Dipping (initial) $296

Spraying or Dipping (renewal) $159

$113

Tents (all others) $296

Tire Storage $159

Wood Products $204

Hot Work and Cutting Operations (within occupancy and mobile) $159

Fireworks Stands $136

Weed Abatement Contractors Cost plus 20%

Special Events Fire and Life Safety $160 per event

Tents/Canopy/Membrane Structures - Non High Fire Hazard Area (100 
occupants)

12 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Hydrant Flow Data $215

PARKS & COMMUNITY SERVICES

Community Center, Multipurpose Room

Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $300

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

$60

Rent: Private Organization (per hour) $86

Rent: Non-Profit/Senior Organization (per hour) $38

Rent: Senior Citizen Organization between 8 am-5 pm (per hour) $26

Facility Attendant, Non-Function Hours (per hour) $15

Community Center, Evelyn Chambers Senior Room

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental

Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $200

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental $60

Rent:  Private Organization (per hour) $66

Rent:  Non-Profit/Senior Organization (per hour) $26

Rent:  Senior Citizen Organization between 8 am-5 pm (per hour) $15

Facility Attendant, Non-Function Hours (per hour) $15

Community Center, Jessie Frago or Andy Longinotti Meeting Rooms

Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $200

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental $60

Rent: Private Organization (per hour) $51

Rent: Non-Profit/Senior Organization (per hour) $26

Rent: Senior Citizen Organization between 8 am-5 pm (per hour) $14

Facility Attendant, Non-Function Hours (per hour) $15
13 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Community Center, Kitchen

Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $200

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental $60

Rent: Private Organization (per hour) $43

Rent: Non-Profit/Senior Organization (per hour) $21

Rent: Senior Citizen Organization between 8 am-5 pm (per hour) $10

Table & Chair Fees:

   Table & Chair Set Up and Usage Fee $81

   Table & Chair Set up and Usage Fee for Senior Citizen Organization $32

Veterans Park Pavilion

$Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $200

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental $60

Atwater Resident Rental Fee with Kitchen $136

Non-Atwater Resident Rental Fee with Kitchen $157

Civic/Schools/Non-Profit Organization with Kitchen $136

Senior Citizen Groups with Kitchen $81

Bloss Grounds

Reservation and Cleaning Deposit $200

Cancellation Fee: Less than 48 Hours of Rental Forfeit of all rental fees

Cancellation Fee: More than 48 Hours of Rental $61

Private Party Rental Fee (per hour) $61

Non-Profit Organization Rental Fee (per hour) $42

Senior Citizen Groups Rental Fee (per hour) $23

Facility Attendant Fee (per hour) Directly to Bloss Account $15

14 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Field Rentals

Osborn and Miyake Ball Field Rental (per hour) $15

Osborn and Miyake Ball Field Rental with Lights (per hour) $30

$101

$26

Veterans Park Football Field Deposit $202

Veterans Park Football Field, Youth Teams (per day) $303

Veterans Park Football Field, Adult Teams (per day) $540

Veterans Park Soccer Field Deposit $202

Veterans Park Soccer Field (per game) $40

Osborn and Miyake Ball Field Tournament Field Preps (per prep per field 
per day)

Osborn and Miyake Ball Field Tournament without Lights (per field per day)

Memorial Ball Field Deposit $202

Memorial Ball Field (per game) $61

Memorial Ball Field Prep $26

Memorial Ball Field Light Usage (per hour) $25

Joan Faul Soccer Field Deposit $202

Joan Faul Soccer Field 1 (per game) $40

Joan Faul Soccer Field 2 (per game) $40

Youth Recreation Programs

Swimming, Public Admission (per child) $2

Swimming, Public Admission (per adult) $3

Learn to Swim Program (parent & infant) $25

Learn to Swim Program   $45

Osborn Park Tennis Court (per key for one year) $63

Youth Basketball (boys & girls grades 3-12) $50

Youth Basketball (co-ed pee wee grades K-2) $42

15 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Youth Indoor Soccer $42

Summer Drop-in Program $152

Youth Flag Football (per player) $51

Girls Volleyball $51

Adult Recreation Programs

Men's, Women's, and Church Summer Softball $596

Co-Ed Summer Softball $379

Men's Fall Softball $379

Co-Ed Fall Softball $379

Men's Summer Basketball League $571

Men's Winter Basketball League $571

Adult Co-Ed Volleyball $303

Resolution No. 2235-07 Adopted February 12, 2007 Setting Miscellaneous Fees

Resolution No. 2368-08 Adopted June 9, 2008 Amending Miscellaneous Fee Schedule

Resolution No. 2386-08 Adopted July 28, 2008 Amending Miscellaneous Fees

Resolution No. 2489-09 Adopted September 14, 2009 Amending Miscellaneous Fees

Resolution No. 2614-11 Adopted July 25, 2011 Amending Miscellaneous Fees

Resolution No. 2656-11 Adopted April 9, 2011 Amending Miscellaneous Fees Regarding False Alarms  

Resolution No. 2677-12 Adopted October 22, 2012 Amending Miscellaneous Fees 

Resolution No. 2722-13 Adopted September 23, 2013 Amending Miscellaneous Fees 

Resolution No. 2753-14 Adopted April 14, 2014 Amending Miscellaneous Fees 

December 2015 - Consumer Price Index - All Urban Consumers - U.S. City Average (unadjusted)

Resolution No. 2429-09 Adopted February 23, 2009 Amending Miscellaneous fee schedule to set aside Fire inspeaction and 
Permit Fees

16 of 17



MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 2016-17

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule
Amended June 29, 2016

Resolution No. 2870-15 Adopted December 12, 2015 Amending Miscellaneous Fees 

17 of 17



Community Development Department 

September 12, 2016 



 Department Consists of; 
◦ Building Division 

◦ Engineering Division 

◦ Planning Division 

◦ Economic Development – Special Projects – includes 
Grant Administration 

◦ Affordable Housing Programs 

◦ Successor Agency – former Redevelopment Agency 

 





Single Family Residential Permits 
◦ 2008 - 2 

◦ 2009 – 0 

◦ 2010 – 0 

◦ 2011 – 0 

◦ 2012 – 5 

◦ 2013 – 4 

◦ 2014 – 39 

◦ 2015 – 112 

◦ 2016 – 33 – through August 25, 2016 

 
 

 



 Total Annual Building Permits; 
◦ 2010 – 429 

◦ 2011- 407 

◦ 2012 – 310 

◦ 2013- 368 

◦ 2014 - 483 

◦ 2015 – 791 

◦ 2016 – 477 – through August 25, 2016 

 



 Chevron Gas Station and Convenience Store 
on Green Sands Ave. 

 Unbranded Gas Station – Green Sands and 
Buhach Road – corner lot 

 Microtel Inn on Green Sands Ave.  

 Remodel to Taco Bell at Bellevue & Redwood 

 

 All are pending Issuance or in Plan Check 



 New Building Codes Adoption by January 1, 
2017 

 Fruitland Church Expansion– classroom 
facilities 

 Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witness – two 
assembly halls off Sunset Ave.  

 699 Broadway – Creamery Building 
conversion to an assembly hall 





 CMAQ Grant Awards – Construction Projects 
◦ 16/17  Buhach Road Pedestrian Improvements - 

$102,110 – local $11,713 

◦ 17/18  Juniper Ave. Pedestrian Improvements – 
$183,136 – local amount of $21,006 

◦ 17/18  Traffic Synchronization, new signal, raised 
median - $547,558 – local amount of $62,809 

 Highway Safety Improvement Program  
◦ 17/18 Signal Modification at Juniper Ave. – Shaffer 

Road - $183,000 – local amount of $18,300  



 CMAQ Equipment Replacement Projects – 
100% grant funded 
◦ 14/16 

o Backhoe               $104,527  Received/Completed 

◦ Starting in 16/17 

 Water Truck                $130,777 Received/Completed 

 Wheel Loader              $219,140 

 Tractor Loader            $98,053 

 Dump Trucks (2)         $184,512 

 



 Other Grant Awards Received–  
◦ Fire Equipment - $27,016 
◦ Fire PPE-$53,146 
◦ PD Vehicle Lap Tops - $28,889 
◦ Patrol Computers and Ballistic Shield - $11,558 
◦ Body Armor- $21,700 
◦ Tasers-$12,097 
◦ Ballistic Helmets-$10,850 
◦ Ballistic Vests-$10,388 
◦ (2) Officers/ Year 2 of three year award-$773,823  
 (waiver received for city match) 
◦ (4) AED’s- $5,209 
◦ DUI Checkpoint Officer OT/Equipment-$61,500 
◦ Fleer Thermal Imagining Camera-$10,225 
◦ (2) Speed Trailers - $14,513 
◦ Outdoor Fitness Equipment-$12,205 
◦ Tree Master Plan & Canopy Analysis- $150,000 
◦ Alternative Vehicles - $93,455 
 (1) Electric Gator 
 (2) Electric PD Zero Motorcycles 
 

 
 



 Pending Awards - 
◦ Systemic Safety Analysis Report Program-to 

complete an analysis for entire transportation 
system within Atwater $125,000 

◦ COPS Hiring Grant-Retention of (2) Police Officer 
Positions/Three Years-$750,000 

◦ Safer Grant Hiring (6) Firefighter II Positions/Two 
Years - $1,528,156 

 

 Researching and Training 
◦ Community Development Block Grants – will be 

eligible when Housing Element is certified 
 





 Finalizing and Closeout of Atwater Boulevard – Applegate 
Road/Winton Way Signal Modification 

 Finalizing and Closeout of Broadway Avenue Pedestrian Safety 
Improvements 

 On Going Engineering Design Projects; 
◦ Juniper Ave. sidewalk - bike path 

◦ Buhach Rd. sidewalk between Avenue One and Buhach Colony High School 

◦ Traffic Signal Synchronization Project 

◦ Signal at Juniper Ave. and Shaffer Rd. 

◦ ADA Self Compliance Plan – assessment of city buildings, parks, sidewalks 

◦ Fruitland Avenue Reconstruction – Overlay 

◦ Winton Way Reconstruction Overlay  

 Assistance on Bid Calls and Specifications for CMAQ funded 
equipment purchases 

 





◦ Upcoming Work Items for 2016 and 2017 
 Zoning Code Amendments – for Housing Element 

Consistency 

 Zoning Code Amendments – Building Code 
Consistency 

 Assistance on Utility Master Plan Updates – in support 
of General Plan Update – Sewer, Water, Storm Drainage 

 Assistance on Public Safety Master Plan – in support of 
General Plan Update 

 General Plan Update RFQ – RFP 

 Municipal Service Review (MSR) update for LAFCO 

 Site and Architectural Plan Requirement Code update  

 Applications update 

 Support to City Attorney on possible Sign Code Update 

 



 Reimbursement Agreement is paying for staff 
time, legal expenses, and consulting services   

 Land Use and Environmental EMC Planning 
Group is proceeding  with the EIR 
preparation; 
◦ Administrative Draft EIR is completed 

◦ Draft EIR is completed 

◦ Administrative Final EIR- October 2016 

◦ Final EIR- December 2016 

◦ Project consideration package- January 2017 

◦ Public Hearings –January/February 2017 

◦ LAFCO – May/June 2017 

 

 



 Other items 
◦ Update of City – County Tax Sharing Agreement 

◦  Enhanced Infrastructure Finance District Setup and 
Implementation (EIFD) 

◦ Development Agreement (DA) 

◦ Traffic Improvement Program (TIP) 





Upcoming Items for 2016 and 2017 

 Recognized Obligation Schedules (ROPS) – 
February 2017 

 Possible Loan Modification for Lupita’s Auto 
Sales 

 Bell Lane Properties  

 Cedar Ave. Property 

 Atwater Boulevard Properties 

 Successor Agency Housing Compliance 
Report – ties to Housing Element 



 Provide Support to the Atwater City Council 

 Provide Support to the Community 
Development & Resources Commission 

 Provide support to the Traffic & Pedestrian 
Safety Working Group – includes PD and PW 

 Cooperate with MCAG – Technical Review 
Board - Technical Planning Committee 

 Provide on going public assistance 

 Provide project – applicant support 

 







General Plan Update 

September 12, 2016 



 

◦ Land Use 

◦ Circulation 

◦Housing 

◦Conservation 

◦Open Space 

◦Noise 

◦ Safety 
 



 Economic Development (Adopted in current 
GP) 

 Air Quality 

 Other elements based on the judgment of the 
local legislative body 

 All have equal legal standing – mandatory or 
optional 



 Potential Impacts of the implementation of the 
General Plan must be evaluated under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

 It will require the preparation of an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) – should be 
done concurrently 

 In addition to approval by the local legislative 
body (Atwater City Council) it will also need to be 
approved by the Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) primarily to establish the 
Sphere of Influence (SOI) the area which the city 
may grow during the implementation of the 
General Plan Implementation Period 



 

 The first General Plan was adopted in 1958  

 Major Revisions occurred in 1968, 1981, 
1992, and 2000 

 Specific Plans or Area Plans were added 
◦ Southwest Area Plan 1987 

◦ Applegate Business Plan 1991 

◦ Downtown Business District 1979  

 



 Adopted in 2000 and expires in 2020 -  July 

 Prepared by Pacific Municipal Consultants 

 Cost for the GP and EIR was approximately 
$200,000 

 The SOI was not approved by LAFCO until 
2002 – required execution of a City – County 
Tax Sharing Agreement 

 The Housing Element is on a different cycle – 
recently adopted and effective until 2023 



 In 2009 an updated was initiated but stopped 
due to financial issues 

 An Existing Conditions Report was completed 
and utility master plans were updated 

 The cost for the Update and EIR was 
approximately $900,000 

 Utility Master Plan costs were separate 



 Staff has obtained some informal estimates to 
prepare an update – the anticipated cost 
including the EIR is approximately $900,000 

 Cost does not include Utility Master Plan Updates 
or a Public  Safety Plan 

 Staff is working to bring forward proposals from 
AECOM, a contracted engineering company, 
which maintains the City’s Utility Plans – if 
updated will help with the GP Update 

 Staff is collecting information for the Municipal 
Service Review (MSR) as requested by LAFCO 



 The GP Update will involve a great number of 
public meetings and likely technical level 
meetings 

 If the public is not adequately involved the GP 
will not reflect the vision of the community 
going forward 

 It will involve coordination with other local 
agencies and utilities 

 It is the start of a larger process – will require 
zoning amendments, impact fee analysis – AB 
1600 impact fee updates to implement the 
new GP 



 The hired consultants will be facilitators and 
impart knowledge from other communities and 
also knowledge on intricacies of State Planning 
Law – Air Quality and GHG for example 

 They will also w ork concurrently on the EIR 
 Legal and State requirements are a moving target 
– new requirements will likely come up in the 
process 

 Minimum time is likely to be 24 to 36 months – 
we should expect longer – does not include 
LAFCO review 

 There will be opposition and could include legal 
challenges 
 



 The City Council and Community Development & 
Resources Commission (CDRC) will have several 
joint and independent meetings on the GP 
update 

 The City Council will have to authorize the 
issuance of an RFP or RFQ as well as allocate 
funding for the implementation – does not need 
to all be available at one time 

 The City Council and CDRC will play a major role 
in guiding where growth should and should not 
occur – land use patterns - which has impacts on 
the entire GP document 

 The City Council and Community Development & 
Resources Commission (CDRC) will have several 
joint and independent meetings on the GP 
update 





Site

COST SAVINGS PER MONTH OF ALL SITES
January 5,800.54$                      
February 10,436.59$                    
March 10,815.10$                    
April 14,072.77$                    
May 12,746.35$                    
June 27,450.04$                    
July 20,181.65$                    
August 13,273.12$                    
September 8,835.73$                      
October 16,684.34$                    
November 8,145.93$                      
December 4,052.68$                      

TOTAL SAVINGS
152,494.83$   

COST SAVINGS PER SITE FOR THE YEAR
Well 21 40,532.27$                    
City Hall Site ACity Hall  A 9,309.07$                     9,309.07$                     
City Hall Site B 54,862.69$                    
Community Center 17,024.93$                    
Well 15 11,095.32$                    
Well 17 19,670.55$                    

TOTAL SAVINGS
152,494.83$   

Note:   There are still some months from a few sites that we don't have data. The panels 
weren't in operation until later in the year. After November we will have data for every site 
at least going back a year.

Also, note that sometimes the pricing may fluctuate on the well due to how much the well 
ran during the month.







Print Form

CITY OF ATWATER

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Request by: James Vineyard

Request for City Council meeting of

Item requested will be for: Informational/Discussion only 0 Discussion/Action [8]

Title of agenda item: Creation of City Council Districts vs Council Seats

Brief description/summary of the agenda item (as you would like it to appear on the agenda):

This City needs to be progress and create City Council Districts in order to provide a more
favorable representation of the population on the Council. While the Mayor can remain elected
"At Large," the City needs to be broken up in 4-5 "Council Districts" with Council members
representing a particular and living in that District. This process needs to begin immediately with
the formation of a 6-10 person committee, implemented prior to the the 2018 elections, and prior
to the City being sued as other Cities have been.

Are supporting documents or exhibits attached? Yes 0 No ilJ..
STAFF USE ONLY

Fiscal Impact: 'tCS Prior City Council Action: Yes 0 No..KL

Consent item: Yes 0 No ~Review complete.

City Manager: ~ t.,........._--

Item 0 approved D not approved:

Date: ~ ~ "t.l..( - (\c,

•......-....----..----------------------TRACKING .--...----..-.....................•.•••.••.

Date Received by Clerk: ~ 1~+J /)0
Departmentls Assigned:

Comments:

Date reviewed at Staff Meeting: q /~/I '-

Date item routed

Item set for:
o Action Action Taken:

~Work Session (discussion) Status Update

On proposed Agenda Date: "1\ ~/, '-
o Contact person notified of action or meeting date: By:



Development Fee Reductions - Incentives 

September 12, 2016 



 The City implemented a temporary fee reduction 
program to encourage new residential 
development 

 The program started in 2013 and was extended 
to June 30, 2016 

 The program provided the option of deferring the 
City’s AB 1600 fees to occupancy – final of the 
building permit or a $3,000 fee reduction if paid 
when the building permit was issued 

 Intended to help kick start residential 
development 

 



◦ 2008 - 2 
◦ 2009 – 0 
◦ 2010 – 0 
◦ 2011 – 0 
◦ 2012 – 5 
◦ 2013 – 4 
◦ 2014 – 39 
◦ 2015 – 112 
◦ 2016 – 33 – through August 25, 2016 

 
◦ Number of units issued receiving the benefits - 176 

 
◦ The estimated total amount of the reduction is 

$528,000 -  
 

 
 

 



◦ Did not apply to commercial or industrial development – or 
any other types of development, institutional for example 

◦ The reduction was only on the City’s AB 1600 component of 
“development impact fees” – CS 824, 2003 

◦ The AB 1600 fees include; 
 Sewer connection fees – capacity and service 

 Water connection fees – capacity and service 

 Government Buildings 

 Police – equipment 

 Fire – equipment 

 Traffic and Circulation 

 Traffic Signals and Opticons 

 Park Land Acquisition 

 Park Land Improvements 

 Youth Center 

 

 



◦ Funds can only be used for projects and activities in the 
AB 1600 Nexus Study 

◦ They are intended to cover the costs to accommodate 
new development – do not address any existing 
deficiencies 

◦ Typically reviewed and updated after a General Plan 
Update or other significant master plan update – water, 
sewer, parks, etc. 

◦ Accounted separately from the General Fund 
◦ Additional conditions can be applied to a project to 

mitigate for new impacts or impacts worsening existing 
conditions – often called an “exaction” or “condition of 
approval” – these are outside of the adopted AB 1600 
and are project specific 
 
 
 
 



 The temporary Impact Fee Reduction did not affect 
any of the following; 
◦ Building Permit Fees – covers costs for inspections 
◦ Building Plan Check Fees – covers the cost to review plans 

for consistency with building codes  
◦ Planning – Entitlement Application Fees – covers costs to 

entitle a project – Site Plan, Planned Development, CUP, etc. 
◦ Encroachment Permit Fees – covers costs to review and 

inspect work done in the public right of way 
◦ Site Plan Improvement Inspection Fees – review of civil 

engineering plans 
◦ Regional Transportation Impact Fees (RTIF) – collected by 

the City and passed through to MCAG 
◦ School Fees – charged and collected by Atwater Elementary 

School District – they also collect for Merced Unified High 
School District 
 
 
 
 



 The City Council may wish to consider some of 
the following options; 
◦ Reinstate a residential reduction program 
◦ Create new programs to reduce fees for non – residential 

development – commercial and industrial for example 
◦ Combine reductions with deferral options 
◦ Provide opportunities for sales tax rebates – similar to 

vacant building sales tax rebate program 
◦ Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rebate for new motel - 

hotel 
◦ Provide opportunities for property tax rebates – may 

want to consider once a new Tax Sharing Agreement is 
executed with Merced County 
 
 



 Program options should be as simple as 
possible – easy to implement and easy to 
understand 

 Implementation should be equitable 
 Some more complex projects may require use 

of a Development Agreement (DA) 
 Programs should be performance based 
 There should be set terms – amounts and 

duration 
 There should be a process to appeal to the 

City Council when any unforeseen issues arise 
 
 



 Reinstate the $3,000 temporary reduction for new residential 
development – single family or multi family, or consider some new 
amount  

 Create a new non residential temporary fee reduction  
 Defer all City AB 1600 fees to Occupancy for new residential 

development – single family or multi family – can be combined with the 
reduction program or as an alternative 

 Defer all City AB 1600 fees to Occupancy for any new non residential 
buildings or additions – expansions – can be combined with the 
reduction program or as an alternative 

 Provide a Sales Tax Rebate on the City’s General share, not Measure H, 
for all new non residential buildings or additions – expansions  

 If reuse of vacant buildings is a higher priority than new building 
development – the council may want to consider increasing the rebate 
amount or extending the term on the vacant building sale tax rebate 
program 

 Provide for a TOT rebate program for new or expanding motel - hotels 
 Consider eliminating all or a portion of the Regional Transportation 

Impact Fees (RTIF) 
 
 



Questions? 

 

Discussion 

 

Possible Direction 

 


	September 12, 2016 - City Council Meeting Agenda.pdf
	September 2016 Monthly Calendar
	October 2016 Monthly Calendar 

	Item 1 - Warrants for September 12, 2016
	Item 2 - City Council Meeting Minutes of 8-22-16
	Item 3 - Accepting 2016 JAG Grant and Exhibit A
	Item 4 - Staff Report - Re-adopting Conflict of Interest Code
	Item 4.1 - Resolution 2919-16 Re-adopting the Conflict of Interest Code
	Item 4.2 - 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice

	Item 5 - CMAQ Program Supplement Agreement 018-F Staff Report
	Item 5.1 - Exhibit A to Program Supplement Agreement No. 018-F Wheel Loader
	Item 5.2 - Exhibit B to Program Supplement Agreement No. 019-F Tractor Loader
	Item 5.3 - Exhibit C to Program Supplemental Agreement No. 020-F Dump Trucks
	Item 5.4 - Resolution No. 2921-16 Authorization to Accept Project Program Supplemental Agreement
	Item 5.5 - Resolution No. 2922-16 Authorizing Program Supplement Agreement
	Item 5.6 - Resolution No. 2923-16 Authorizing Program Supplement Agreement

	Item 6 - HSIP Awarding Professional Services Contract to Mott MacDonald
	Item 6.1 - Exhibit A to HSIP Staff Report
	Item 6.2 - Exhibit B to HSIP Staff Report
	Item 6.3 - Exhibit C to HSIP Report - Prof Svc Agreement

	Item 7 - Staff Report for Review of Local Drought Emergency
	Item 7.1 - Resolution No. 2823-15 Declares Existence of Local Drought Emergency

	Item 8 - Police Notable Cases - August 2016
	Item 8.1 - Police Incident Reprt
	Item 8.2 - DUI checkpoint and Sat Patrol Stats

	Item 9 - Police Volunteers Report for August 2016
	Item 10 - Fire Stats - 2016
	Item 11 -  Public Works Project Report - August 2016
	Item 12 - Request from New Life Community Church
	Item 13  - Staff Report Amending the Misc  Fee Schedule 09 12 16
	Item 13.1 - Resolution No  2918-16 Amending Misc  Fee Schedule 09 12 16
	Item 13.2 - Miscellaneous Fee Schedule  - Revised June 29 2016

	Item 14 - Community Development Department Update for 9-12-16 - V2
	Item 15 - General Plan Update
	Item 15 - General Plan UpdateUpdate 9-12-16 (Ver 2)

	Item 16 - Solar Savings
	Item 17 - Dissolving the Audit and Finance Committee
	Item 18 - Establishing a policy prohibiting cell phones and other texting devices during City Council Meetings
	Item 19 - By-District Election Method
	Item 20 - Development Fee Reductions - Incentives



